
           
 

AGENDA
ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

January 3, 2017–8:35 a.m.
Escambia County Central Office Complex

3363 West Park Place, Room 104
             
1. Call to Order.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.   
 

4. Approval of Minutes.  
 

A.  
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Regular Meeting Resume' Minutes of the December 6, 2016 Planning Board
Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for December 2016.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for January 2017.
 

5. Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.  
 

6. Public Hearings.  
 

A.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
2030 Future Land Use Map, LSA-2016-04.

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for transmittal to the Department of Economic
Opportunity (DEO), an Ordinance amending the 2030 Future Land Use
(FLU) Map.

 

B.    A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending LDC



B.    A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending LDC
Chapters 5 and 6

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance amending the Land
Development Code (LDC), Chapters 5 and 6, to clarify enforcement,
mitigation, and other tree protection and landscaping provisions.

 

7. Action/Discussion/Info Items.  
 

A. Spot Zoning Ordinance  
 

B.   2017 Planning Board Meeting Calendar
 

C. 50 foot lot width in LDR.  
 

8. Public Forum.  
 

9. Director's Review.  
 

10. County Attorney's Report.  
 

11. Scheduling of Future Meetings.  
 

The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
February 7, 2017 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office
Complex, Room 104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

 

12. Announcements/Communications.  
 

13. Adjournment.  
 



   
Planning Board-Regular   4. A.           
Meeting Date: 01/03/2017  

Agenda Item:

A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the Regular
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the December 6, 2016 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for December 2016.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for January 2017.

Attachments
December 6, 2016 Draft Regular Planning Board Minutes
Monthly Action Follow-Up
Six Month Outlook



D R A F T
MINUTES OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

 December 6, 2016

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(8:42 A.M. – 9:10 A.M.)
(11:36 A.M. – 12:29 P.M.)

Present: Reid Rushing   
  Jay Ingwell   
  Tim Tate, Vice Chairman   
  Wayne Briske, Chairman   
  Timothy Pyle   
  Edwin Howard   
  Patty Hightower, School Board (non-voting)   
  Stephanie Oram, Navy (Non voting)   
Absent: Alvin Wingate
Staff Present: Caleb MacCartee, Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning

Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
John Fisher, Senior Urban Planner, Planning & Zoning
Kayla Meador, Sr Office Assistant
Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney

 

 

               

1.  Call to Order.
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

3.  Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement. 
 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Tim Tate 

Motion was made to approve the proof of publication and to waive the
reading of the legal advertisement. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Alvin Wingate (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 



 

4.  Approval of Minutes.
 

A.     
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the November 1, 2016 Planning Board
Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for November 2016.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for December 2016.

  

 
  Motion by Timothy Pyle, Seconded by Reid Rushing 

Motion was made to approve the minutes from the November 1, 2016
Regular Planning Board meeting. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Alvin Wingate (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 

 

5.  Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.
 

6.  Public Hearings.
 

A.      A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
2030 Future Land Use Map, LSA-2016-03

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for transmittal to the Department of Economic
Opportunity (DEO), an Ordinance amending the 2030 Future Land Use Map.

  

 
  Motion by Tim Tate, Seconded by Edwin Howard 

Motion was made to take no action and return to applicant for the
applicant to re-submit with lower portion of property. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Alvin Wingate (ABSENT) 
 

B.     A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending
Chapter 6, Section 6-0.3 "Definitions", Subsection "I" and Subsection "S"

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development
Code (LDC) Chapter 6, Section 6-0.3 "Terms defined," subsection "I" by
adding "Incompatible Development" and Subsection "S" by adding in "Spot
Zoning" into the LDC.

  



Zoning" into the LDC.
 
  Motion by Tim Tate, Seconded by Timothy Pyle 

Motion was made to drop item from the agenda and to bring back in
January as a discussion item. 

  Vote: 5 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Alvin Wingate (ABSENT) 
  Edwin Howard (ABSENT) 

 

7.  Action/Discussion/Info Items.

TIm Tate discussed with Staff what information the mailouts had for the
public hearings, and discussed different ideas about what to add on the
mailout.

 

A.  Scenic Highway Overlay Design Change.

Staff and Board Members discussed different issues.
 

8.  Public Forum.
 

9.  Director's Review.
 

10.  County Attorney's Report.
 

11.  Scheduling of Future Meetings.
 

 The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
January 3, 2017 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office
Complex, Room 104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

12.  Announcements/Communications.
 

13.  Adjournment.
 



 
Memorandum 
 
TO:  Planning Board 
 
FROM: Kayla Meador, Board Clerk 
 
DATE:  December 20, 2016 
 
RE:  Monthly Action Follow-Up Report for December 2016. 
 
The following is a status report of Planning Board (PB) agenda items for the prior month of 
December. Some items include information from previous months in cases where final 
disposition has not yet been determined. Post-monthly actions are included (when known) as of 
report preparation date. Items are listed in chronological order, beginning with the PB initial 
hearing on the topic. 
 
PROJECTS, PLANS, & PROGRAMS 
 
Ensley Redevelopment 
08-02-16 PB recommended approval 
 
Atwood Redevelopment 
9-6-16  PB recommended approval 
 
COMMITTEES & WORKING GROUP MEETINGS 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 
  
• Text Amendments: 

CPA-2016-02 
OLF Saufley Airport 
08-02-16  PB Recommended Approval 
09-01-16  BCC approved transmittal to DEO 
01-05-17 BCC meeting 
 
CPA-2016-03 
Definition added for “Limited Ag Uses” 
10-06-16 PB recommended approval 
11-03-16 BCC approved transmittal to DEO 
 
 
 
 
 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

3363 WEST PARK PLACE 
PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 32505 

PHONE: 850-595-3475 
FAX: 850-595-3481 

www.myescambia.com 

1 
 



 
• Map Amendments: 

 
LSA-2016-02 
Saufley Field Road 
09-06-16  PB recommended approval 
10-06-16 BCC approved transmittal to DEO 
01-05-17 BCC meeting 
 
LSA-2016-03 
Beulah Road 
12-06-16 PB dropped case 
 

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE ORDINANCES 
 
Residential Uses in Zoning Districts 
09-6-16 PB recommended more review by staff 
  On hold – waiting for input from County Attorney’s Office  
 
OSP-2016-01 
09-06-16 PB recommended approval 
12-08-16 BCC wanted to reschedule for DEO to be in attendance to meeting 
 
AICUZ  Maps 
09-06-16 PB recommended approval 
12-08-16 BCC approved 
 
Medical Marijuana 
11-01-16 PB recommended approval 
12-08-16 BCC reviewed 
01-05-17 BCC meeting 
 
Corner Lots 
11-01-16 PB recommended approval 
12-08-16 BCC approved 
 
Spot Zoning 
12-06-16 PB dropped item and wanted more discussion 
 
REZONING CASES 
 
1. Rezoning Case Z-2016-07 

10-06-16 PB recommended denial 
11-03-16 BCC denied 

 
2. Rezoning Case Z-2016-08 

10-06-16 PB recommended approval contingent upon LSA-2016-02 
01-05-17 BCC meeting 

 
 
 

2 
 



3. Rezoning Case Z-2016-09 
10-06-16 PB recommended approval 
11-03-16 BCC approved 

 
4. Rezoning Case Z-2016-10 

12-06-16 PB recommended denial 
01-05-17 BCC meeting 

 
5. Rezoning Case Z-2016-11 

12-06-16 PB dropped case 
 
6. Rezoning Case Z-2016-12 

12-06-16 PB recommended approval 
01-05-17 BCC meeting 

 
7. Rezoning Case Z-2016-13 

12-06-16 PB recommended approval 
01-05-17 BCC meeting 

3 
 



PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE 
SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR JANUARY 2017 

(Revised 12/20/16)  
 

A.H. = Adoption Hearing         T.H. = Transmittal Hearing          P.H. = Public Hearing 
* Indicates topic/date is estimated—subject to staff availability for project completion and/or citizen liaison  

 

Meeting Date 
 

LDC Changes and/or 
Public Hearings 

Comprehensive 
Plan 

Amendments 
Rezoning 

Reports, 
Discussion and/or 

Action Items 

Tuesday, January 3, 2017 • Landscaping and Tree 
Protection 

 

• McDonald’s 
Property (Jail 
site) LSA-2016-
04 

• McDonald’s 
Property (Jail 
site) Z-2016-
15 

 

Tuesday, February 7, 2017 • 2500 Foot Radius  • Z-2016-14 
• Z-2016-16 

 

Tuesday, March 7, 2017     

Tuesday, April 4, 2017     

Tuesday, May 2, 2017     

Tuesday, June 6, 2017     

 
Disclaimer: This document is provided for informational purposes only. Schedule is subject to change. Verify all topics on the current 
meeting agenda one week prior to the meeting date. 
 

** Residential Uses Ordinance – waiting on input from the County Attorney’s Office 
** Signs Ordinance – waiting on input from the BCC 
** CPA-2016-01 Extraction and Reclamation – on hold 



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. A.           
Meeting Date: 01/03/2017  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the

2030 Future Land Use Map, LSA-2016-04
From: Horace Jones, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the 2030 Future
Land Use Map, LSA-2016-04.

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
transmittal to the Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO), an Ordinance amending
the 2030 Future Land Use (FLU) Map.

BACKGROUND:
The applicant requests a FLU map amendment to change the FLU category of a 29.30
(+/-) acre contiguous four-parcel site from Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) and Commercial (C)
to Public (P). The current zoning designation of the referenced parcels is Heavy
Commercial and Light Industrial (HC/LI) and High Density Residential (HDR). The county
proposes to rezone to Public (P) (case number Z-2016-15) pending the approval of this
FLU amendment. The FLU amendment proposed is to make existing county government
or other public institutions or agencies on already Escambia County owned property
compliant with the 2030 Comprehensive Plan. Escambia County is proposing a new
county jail site on this location.

The contiguous four parcels are located along the north of St. Mary Street, south of
Fairfield Drive, west of N “L” Street and east of Pace Boulevard. The properties are built
out consisting of the Escambia Jail complex and Juvenile Justice Center.
The area to the south are residential and commercial uses and zoned HDR, HC/LI and
Commercial (Com). To the west and north the zoning consists of HC/LI with all
commercial type uses. To the east is zoned P where Escambia County Jail
Administration and Escambia County Area Transit (ECAT) is located.

The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part II of the
Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan:
2030, as amended; Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all
notations, references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the
following future land use changes: 



A parcel within Section 17, Township 2S, Range 30W, parcel number
5015-000-002 and totaling 14.78 (+/-) acres, located at 1800 St. Mary Street, as
more particularly described in the two split Boundary Survey descriptions one
produced  by Pittman Glaze and Associates, Inc., Professional Engineering &
Surveying Services as Exhibit A, and the second Boundary Survey description
produced by Hatch Mott MacDonald, LLC., Professional Engineering & Surveying
Services as Exhibit B, from  Mixed Use Urban (MU-U) to Public (P);

A.

A parcel within Section 17, Township 2S, Range 30W, parcel number
5015-000-009 and totaling 1.72 (+/-) acres, located at 2816 N Pace Boulevard, as
more particularly described in the Boundary Survey description produced by
Pittman Glaze and Associates, Inc., Professional Engineering & Surveying Services
as Exhibit C, from Mixed Use Urban (MU-U) to Public (P);

B.

A parcel within Section 17, Township 2S, Range 30W, parcel number parcel
number 5015-002-001 and totaling 12.38 (+/-) acres, located at 3080 N Pace
Boulevard, as more particularly described in the Boundary Survey description
produced by Pittman Glaze and Associates, Inc., Professional Engineering &
Surveying Services as Exhibit C, from Commercial (C) to Public (P);

C.

And a parcel within Section 17, Township 2S, Range 30W, parcel number
5015-003-001 and totaling 0.22 acres located at 1807 W Fairfield Drive, as more
particularly described in the Boundary Survey description produced by Pittman
Glaze and Associates, Inc., Professional Engineering & Surveying Services as
Exhibit C from Commercial (C) to Public (P); all parcels totaling 29.3 (+/-) acres.

D.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by
Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments are
attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the Comprehensive Plan be filed with the Department of
State following adoption by the board.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and
distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in



cooperation with  the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
LSA-2016-04 Working Case File
Staff Analysis
Draft Ordinance



LSA-2016-04 



P
CC

N 
PA

CE
 B

LV
D

W AVERY ST

N 
V 

ST

LENOX
PKWY

N
S

ST

MASSACHUSETTS AVE

W LEE ST

MI
SS

IO
N 

RD

N 
R 

ST

N 
I S

T

SYCAMORE
DR

N 
PA

CE
BL

VD

W LEE ST

W MORENO ST

N
K

ST

H ICKORY ST

SPRUCE ST

N 
Z 

ST

W JORDAN ST

W BRAINERD ST

W FAIRFIELD DR

HUNTER
AVE

N 
H 

ST

N L ST

LANSDOWNE

AVE

MA
RC

US
DR

W SCOTT ST

W BLOUNT
ST

W MAXWELL
ST

W MALLORYST

N 
D 

ST

N H ST

HYATT ST

COOKS
CTTRUMAN

CT

LURTON ST

N 
G 

ST

N 
Y 

ST

N 
F 

ST
ST MARY

AVE

N PALAFOX ST
N 

U 
ST

W
ES

T
PA

RK
PL

N 
U 

ST

MELODY LN

N 
B 

ST

W LEONARD ST

E FAIRFIELD DR

W YONGE
ST

ANDREW
 AVE

NORRIS
AVE

W HATTON ST

W BAARS ST

N 
Q 

ST W HAYES
ST

PLEA

S A NT

AV E

W AVERY
ST

W SCOTT
ST

ST JOSEPHAVE

W GODFREY ST

W MAXWELL ST

W CROSS ST

W BLOUNT ST N
K

ST

HANSEN
BLVD

W HAYES ST

W YONGE ST

N 
Z 

ST

ARMENIA DR

W BLOUNT ST

W HATTONST
ST CATHERINE AVE

W CROSS ST

ST MARY AVE

N 
J 

ST

W MALLORY ST

W BLOUNT ST

W CROSS ST

W BOBE ST

W SCOTT ST

W AVERY ST

W MORENO ST

W LEONARDST

W HERNANDEZ ST

W LEE ST

W MAXWELL ST

W MALLORYST

W SCOTT ST

N 
J 

ST

W FISHER ST

W LEE ST

N 
M 

ST

N 
P 

ST

W MORENOST

W MALLORY ST

N 
K 

ST

W MAXWELL ST

N 
H 

ST

W FISHER
ST

N 
M 

ST

N 
V 

ST

N 
B 

ST

N 
N 

ST

W BAARS ST

N 
T 

ST

N
R

ST

W LLOYD ST

N 
E 

ST

W BLOU N T ST

W LAKEVIEW AVE

N 
C 

ST

W LLOYD ST

KELLY
AVE

N 
G 

ST

N 
I

ST

QUINA WAY

GANDY
PL

FAIRFIELD
RAMP

W FAIRFIELD DR

N W
 ST

W TEXAR DR

BEGGS LN

BAYLISS CT

N 
M ST

N 
P 

ST

W 40TH LN

W 42ND LN

TRUMAN AVE

DE LANO ST

W LORETTA ST

DELANO ST

CLAY STCLAY ST

TOWN ST

W HERMAN AVE
N 

N 
ST

N
DAV IS

HW
Y

E TEXAR DR

NJST

HILL DR

PALM CT

JOHN
GRAY R D

COONS
AVE

MASON LN

E HERMAN

AVE

N 
L 

ST

W
AREHOUSE

LN

PEARL AVE

INTERSTATE
110

N P ST

MC
CO

Y
DR

CLARINDA LN

MA
RK

ET
ST

MICHAELDR

2500 FT BUFFER
500 FT BUFFER
COMBINED PROPERTYS
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,250 2,500 3,750

Ft

LSA-2016-04
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



W CROSS
ST

W FAIRFIELD DR

ST JOSEPH AVE

DELANO ST

TOWN ST

N 
M ST

N 
L 

ST

N 
N

ST

N 
PA

CE
 B

LV
D

ST MARY AVE

N
IS

T

W CROSS ST

W HAYES ST

ST MARY AVE

ST JOSEPH AVE

ST CATHERINE AVE

N 
Q 

ST

N 
P 

ST

W FAIRFIELD DR
N 

N 
ST

W LEONARD ST

N 
M 

ST

N 
L 

ST

ComCom

HC/LIHC/LI

HC/LI
HC/LI

HC/LIHC/LIHC/LIHC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI HC/LI

HC/LI
HC/LI

HC/LI

HC/LI
HC/LI

HC/LIHC/LI
HC/LIHC/LI

HC/LIHC/LI

HDMU

HDR
HDR

HDR
HDR

HDR

MDR

MDR

MDR

MDR

MDR Pub

Pub

HDR

HDR Pub
500 FT BUFFER
COMBINED PROPERTYS
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 340 680 1,020

Ft

LSA-2016-04
ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



W FAIRFIELD DR

N 
PA

CE
 B

LV
D

N 
M 

ST

N 
N 

ST

N
R

ST

N 
L 

ST

ST MARY AVE

W
ES

T
PA

RK
PL

W
ES

T 
PA

RK
 P

L

N
I S

T

N 
J 

ST

N 
Q 

ST

W HATTON ST

ST JOSEPH AVE

W CROSS ST

W HAYES ST

ST CATHERINE AVE

W CROSS ST

ST MARY AVE

ST JOSEPH AVE

W YONGE ST

DELANO ST

W SCOTT ST

TOWN ST

W FAIRFIELD DR

N 
P 

ST

W HERMAN AVE

N 
N 

ST

N 
M 

ST

W LEONARD ST

N
L

ST

C

MU-U

P

Export_Output_2_Buffer_Buffe
Export_Output_2_Buffer
COMBINED PROPERTYS
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 420 840 1,260

Ft

LSA-2016-04
FUTURE LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

C

MU-U



P

MU-U

C

P

P

C

C

MU-U

MU-U

C

W CROSS
ST

W FAIRFIELD DR

ST JOSEPH AVE

DELANO ST

TOWN ST

N 
M ST

N 
L 

ST

N 
N

ST

N 
PA

CE
 B

LV
D

ST MARY AVE

N
I S

T

W CROSS ST

W HAYES ST

ST MARY AVE

ST JOSEPH AVE

ST CATHERINE AVE

N 
Q 

ST

N 
P 

ST

W FAIRFIELD DR
N 

N 
ST

W LEONARD ST

N 
M 

ST

N
L

ST

Export_Output_2_Buffer_Buffe
Export_Output_2_Buffer
COMBINED PROPERTYS
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 340 680 1,020

Ft

LSA-2016-04
PROPOSED FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



W FAIRFIELD DR

DELANO ST

N 
L 

ST

ST MARY AVE

N 
M 

ST

N 
N 

ST

N 
PA

CE
 B

LV
D

W CROSS
ST

W CROSS ST

W HAYES ST

ST MARY AVE

ST JOSEPH AVE

ST CATHERINE AVE

NQ
ST

N 
P 

ST

W FAIRFIELD DR

W LEONARD ST

TOWN ST

N 
N 

ST

N 
M 

ST

N
L

ST

ST JOSEPH AVE
500 FT BUFFER
COMBINED PROPERTYS
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 330 660 990

Ft

LSA-2016-04
ELU MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

ST
OR

ST
OR

ST
OR

ST
OR

ST
OR

ST
OR

ST
OR

ST
OR

ST
OR

STOR

OFFICE
REST

REST
REST REST REST

PA
RK

NG

OFFICE

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF
SF

SF
SF SF

SF

OF
FIC

E

STORMWATER POND

ESCAMBIA COUNTY 
SHERIFF OFFICE

V
VV

V

V

V

V

V
V

V
V

TOWN & COUNTRY SHOPPING CENTER

ST
OR

ST
OR

ST
OR

OF
FIC

E

OF
FIC

E
TO

W
NH

OM
E

STORAGEST
OR

ST
OR

ST
OR

SF
SF
MH

MH

ST
OR

ST
OR

SF

SF STOR

WA
RE

HO
US

E

STOR
VCSTOR

VC
VC

STOR

STOR

STOR RE
ST GAS ST

VC
STOR

STOR

VC

RESTVC

VC

REST

AUTO

COC



W FAIRFIELD DR

DELANO ST

N 
L 

ST

ST MARY AVE

N 
M 

ST

N 
N 

ST

N 
PA

CE
 B

LV
D

W CROSS
ST

W CROSS ST

W HAYES ST

ST MARY AVE

ST JOSEPH AVE

ST CATHERINE AVE

NQ
ST

N 
P 

ST

W FAIRFIELD DR

W LEONARD ST

TOWN ST

N 
N 

ST

N 
M 

ST

N
L

ST

ST JOSEPH AVE

ENGLEWOOD

PALAFOX

Export_Output_2_Buffer_Buffe
Export_Output_2_Buffer
PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 330 660 990

Ft

LSA-2016-04
CRA MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

ENGLEWOOD

PALAFOX



Public Notice Sign on L Street



Looking east across L Street from 
subject parcel



Subject parcel on L street



Looking north from subject parcel 
along L Street



Looking west along L Street from 
subject parcel



Public Notice Sign on St Mary Ave



Looking south on St Mary Street 
across from subject parcel



Subject parcel on St Mary 
Avenue



Looking east along St Mary Avenue 
from subject parcel



Looking west on St Mary Avenue 
toward Pace Blvd



Public Notice Sign on N 
Pace Blvd



Looking west across Pace 
Blvd from subject parcel



Looking  south along Pace 
Blvd from subject parcel



Looking north along Pace Blvd



Looking into subject 
parcel on Pace Blvd



Looking  south into subject parcel 
on W. Fairfield Dr.



Public Notice Sign on W. 
Fairfield Dr.



Public Notice Sign on W. 
Fairfield Dr.



Looking onto subject 
parcel on W. Fairfield Dr.



Looking west on W. 
Fairfield parcel



Looking east along W. Fairfield 
from subject parcel







ESCAMBIA COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, FL 32505 (850) 595-3475 

  

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT APPLICATION 
  

 
(THIS SECTION FOR OFFICE USE ONLY): 
 
TYPE OF REQUEST:  SMALL SCALE FLU AMENDMENT _________________                         
    LARGE SCALE FLU AMENDMENT LSA 2016-04____                            
Current FLU:   MU-U and C  Desired FLU:      (P) Public               Zoning: _HDR & HC/LI 
Taken by:_John C Fisher_____________                                    
Planning Board Public Hearing, date(s): __January 3, 2017_________ 
 
BCC Public Hearing, proposed date(s):  ____________________ 
 
Fees Paid                                    Receipt #                                      Date:  ___12/1/2016_____ 
 
OWNER'S NAME AND HOME ADDRESS AS SHOWN ON PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FL 
 
Name:____Escambia County Board of County Commissioners_ 
 
Address:  __________221 Palafox PL STE 420,_________________ 
 
City:                     Pensacola                     State:        Florida   Zip Code:  ____32502 
 
Telephone: (850 )  595-3475 
 
Email:  
  
 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY: 
 
Street address: (See attachment), 2816 N Pace Blvd, 1807 W Fairfield Dr; and 3080 N Pace 
Blvd = (14.52 ±), 1800 St Mary Street (Juvenile Justice Center 8.79 ± and Jail Site 5.99 ±). 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subdivision:  
 
_________________N/A____________________________________________________ 
 
Property reference number: Section         17         Township       2S          Range____30W_____ 
 
   Parcel      5015                     Lot                           Block ______________ 
 
Size of Property (acres)  29.3 ± ___    Sewer_X_  Septic Tank____ 
 

Page 3 of 7 



ESCAMBIA COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, FL 32505 (850) 595-3475 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT APPLICATION 
CONCURRENCY DETERMINATION ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
Project name:  _________LSA 2016-04 

_____________________________________________________ 

Property reference #: Section   17      Township   2S       Range 30W             

Parcel # _5015-000-002, 5015-000-009, 5015-002-001, 5015-003-001 

Project Address:  2816 N Pace Blvd, 1807 W Fairfield Dr; and 3080 N Pace Blvd, 1800 St Mary 

Street (Juvenile Justice Center and Jail Site). 

I/We acknowledge and agree that no future development permit (other than a 
rezoning/reclassification) shall be approved for the subject parcel(s) prior to the issuance of a 
certificate of concurrency for such proposed development based on the densities and intensities 
contained within such future development permit application. 
 
I/We also acknowledge and agree that no development permit or order (other than a rezoning 
/reclassification) will be issued at that time unless at least one of the concurrency management 
system standards is met as contained in the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, Part II, 
Section 6.04, namely: 

(1) The necessary facilities and services are in place at the time a development 
permit is issued; or 

 
(2) A development permit is issued subject to the condition that the necessary 

facilities and services will be in place when the impacts of the development 
occur; or 

 
(3) The necessary facilities are under construction at the time a permit is issued; or 

 
(4) The necessary facilities and services are the subject of a binding executed 

contract for the construction of the facilities or the provision of services at the 
time the development permit is issued. NOTE: This provision only relates to 
parks and recreation facilities and roads.  The LDC will include a requirement 
that the provision or construction of the facility or service must commence within 
one (1) year of the Development Order or Permit; or 

 
(5) The necessary facilities and services are guaranteed in an enforceable 

development agreement.  An enforceable development agreement may include, 
but is not limited to, development agreements pursuant to Section 163.320, 
Florida Statutes or an agreement or development order issued pursuant to 
Chapter 380, Florida Statutes. Any such agreement shall include provisions 
pursuant to paragraphs 1, 2, or 3 above.   

 
(6) The necessary facilities needed to serve new development are in place or under 

actual construction no more than three (3) years after issuance, by the County, of 
a certificate of occupancy or its functional equivalent.  NOTE: This provision only 
relates to roads.  

 
I HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE THAT I HAVE READ, UNDERSTAND AND AGREE WITH THE 
ABOVE STATEMENT ON THIS                     DAY OF  _______________________ , 20______  
 
                                                                            ESCAMBIA COUNTY 
Owner's signature     Owner's name (print)  
 

Page 6 of 7 



From: Meredith D. Crawford
To: John C. Fisher; Horace L Jones
Cc: Stephen G. West; Alain Espinosa
Subject: FW: McDonalds Property
Date: Monday, December 19, 2016 9:03:05 AM
Attachments: LSA 2016-04 FLU Application.docx

Z-2016-15 rezoning-application.pdf

Good morning, John and Horace,
 
These forms need to be completed by Planning and Zoning and/or administration.
I have discussed this with Steve and the email from Mr. Bookman along with the Purchase Contract
 are  sufficient in place of an Agency Form.
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.
Meredith
 
Meredith D. Crawford
Assistant County Attorney
Escambia County Attorney's Office
221 Palafox Place, Suite 430
Pensacola, FL  32502
Telephone: (850) 595-4970
Fax:  (850) 595-4979
 
 

From: John C. Fisher 
Sent: Friday, December 16, 2016 11:02 AM
To: Meredith D. Crawford; Horace L Jones; Allyson Cain; Stephen G. West
Cc: Alain Espinosa
Subject: RE: McDonalds Property
 
Steve,
 
Can you please complete the forms for the Jail Rezoning and the Large Scale Map Amendment.
 
Thanks
John C Fisher
Senior Planner
Development Services Department
3363 West Park Place
Pensacola, FL 32505
850-595-4651
 
 

From: Meredith D. Crawford 
Sent: Friday, December 16, 2016 8:51 AM
To: John C. Fisher; Horace L Jones; Allyson Cain
Cc: Alain Espinosa
Subject: RE: McDonalds Property



 
These should be completed showing the County as both the Owner (of the parcels that are ours) and
 showing the County as the agent (for the parcels that we do not own).
The current owner of the other properties has authorized the County to act as its agent – see prior
 emails to Horace from Alison – however, as discussed previously  they would need to complete an
 agency form- which should be accomplished through Steve West. You may complete the form,
 forward it to Steve, and he will have their attorney sign. Or send him a blank form and have their
 attorney complete it- whatever works best for you.
Horace and/or Jack or someone from planning would be the person to sign the FLUM and rezoning
 request forms for presentation to the PB.
Meredith
 
Meredith D. Crawford
Assistant County Attorney
Escambia County Attorney's Office
221 Palafox Place, Suite 430
Pensacola, FL  32502
Telephone: (850) 595-4970
Fax:  (850) 595-4979
 

From: John C. Fisher 
Sent: Thursday, December 15, 2016 11:20 AM
To: Horace L Jones; Allyson Cain; Meredith D. Crawford
Subject: RE: McDonalds Property
 
Meredith,
 
These are the forms that have been completed for the Jail Rezoning and Large Scale.  I attached the
 two applications and a full rezoning application because some of the pages have been taken out of
 the Z-2016-15 rezoning application which I didn’t think we needed.  Please review the applications
 and let me know who the Agent and if anyone needs to sign the applications.
 
Thanks
 
John C Fisher
Senior Planner
Development Services Department
3363 West Park Place
Pensacola, FL 32505
850-595-4651
 
 
 

From: Horace L Jones 
Sent: Wednesday, December 14, 2016 11:27 AM
To: John C. Fisher; Allyson Cain
Subject: FW: McDonalds Property
 



Please get the proper form and  forward it on.  Thanks!!
 

From: Meredith D. Crawford 
Sent: Wednesday, December 14, 2016 11:18 AM
To: Horace L Jones
Cc: Alain Espinosa
Subject: McDonalds Property
 
Do we have an agency form on file authorizing us to act as the agent from the seller? This would
 have been accomplished through Steve. If not, can you send it to me and I will forward to Steve to
 ask Mr. Bookman, the attorney for the property owner to execute it, this would authorize us to
 proceed at least through the preliminary actions.
Please let me know.
Meredith
 
Meredith D. Crawford
Assistant County Attorney
Escambia County Attorney's Office
221 Palafox Place, Suite 430
Pensacola, FL  32502
Telephone: (850) 595-4970
Fax:  (850) 595-4979
 



From: Meredith D. Crawford
To: John C. Fisher
Cc: Alain Espinosa
Subject: FW: 09865-135563 McDonald Shopping Center, LLC s/t Escambia County: land use amendments
Date: Friday, December 16, 2016 8:55:02 AM
Attachments: image001.png

FYI.
 
Meredith D. Crawford
Assistant County Attorney
Escambia County Attorney's Office
221 Palafox Place, Suite 430
Pensacola, FL  32502
Telephone: (850) 595-4970
Fax:  (850) 595-4979
 

From: Horace L Jones 
Sent: Wednesday, December 14, 2016 1:12 PM
To: Alison A. Rogers
Cc: Meredith D. Crawford; Dianne C. Simpson
Subject: RE: 09865-135563 McDonald Shopping Center, LLC s/t Escambia County: land use
 amendments
 
Thanks!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
 

From: Alison A. Rogers 
Sent: Wednesday, December 14, 2016 12:59 PM
To: Horace L Jones
Cc: Meredith D. Crawford; Dianne C. Simpson
Subject: Fwd: 09865-135563 McDonald Shopping Center, LLC s/t Escambia County: land use
 amendments
 
Horace,
 
You may continue.
 
A

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Alan Bookman <ABB@esclaw.com>
Date: December 14, 2016 at 12:52:06 PM CST
To: "Alison A. Rogers" <aaperdue@co.escambia.fl.us>
Cc: "Stephen G. West" <sgwest@co.escambia.fl.us>, "Dianne C. Simpson"
 <dcsimpso@co.escambia.fl.us>
Subject: RE: 09865-135563 McDonald Shopping Center, LLC s/t Escambia County:
 land use amendments



Correct—please proceed.
 

From: Alison A. Rogers [mailto:aaperdue@co.escambia.fl.us]
Sent: Wednesday, December 14, 2016 11:05 AM
To: Alan Bookman
Cc: Stephen G. West; Dianne C. Simpson
Subject: 09865-135563 McDonald Shopping Center, LLC s/t Escambia County: land use
 amendments
 
Alan,
 
I need to confirm with you the schedule for the large scale future land use change and
 the rezoning for the McDonald property.  The Planning staff intends to take the future

 land use amendment to the Planning Board on January 3, to the BCC on January 19th

 and then it goes to the state DEO for comments before it returns to the BCC for final
 adoption.  The rezoning may go to the Planning Board at the same time, but wouldn’t
 go to the BCC for final action until the future land use amendment is ready for final
 vote, so well after January.  Can I assume these preliminary votes by the Planning
 Board are okay with your client prior to the closing?
 
Alison P. Rogers
County Attorney
Escambia County Board of County Commissioners
221 Palafox Place, Suite 430
Pensacola, Florida 32502
Phone: (850) 595-4970
Fax: (850) 595-4979
 

 











LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  
 PARCEL 1  
 Commence at the Northeast corner of Lot 15, Section 17, Township 2 
South, Range 30 West; thence North 89 degrees 37 minutes 30 seconds West 
along the North line of the said lot for a distance of 787.50 feet; 
thence South 1 degree 11 minutes West for a distance of 41.28 feet to a 
point on the Southerly right-of-way line of Fairfield Drive (Pottery 
Road, S.R. No. 289-A, 80 foot right-of-way) to the point of beginning; 
Thence continue South 1 degree 11 minutes West for a distance of 114.72 
feet; thence South 89 degrees 37 minutes 30 seconds East for a distance 
of 150.00 feet; thence South 1 degree 11 minutes West for a distance of 
144.00 feet; thence South  89 degrees 37 minutes 30 seconds East for a 
distance of 100.00 feet; thence South 1 degree 11 minutes West for a 
distance of 50.00 feet to the Tringas property as described in the deed 
recorded in Deed Book 359 at page 142 of the public records of Escambia 
County, Florida; thence North 89 degrees 37 minutes 30 seconds West along 
the North line of the said Tringas property for a distance of 277.47 
feet; thence South 72 degrees 42 minutes 14 seconds West for a distance 
of 100.00 feet; thence South 48 degrees 20 minutes 16 seconds West for a 
distance of 100.00 feet; thence South 30 degrees 40 minutes West for a 
distance of 30.36 feet to a point that is 100.00 feet North of (as 
measured at a right angle) to the North line of that portion of the 
Tringas property that abuts Pace Boulevard; thence North 89 degrees 37 
minutes 30 seconds West parallel to and 100 feet North of that portion of 
the Tringas property that abuts Pace Boulevard for a distance of 198.51 
feet to the Easterly right-of-way line of Pace Boulevard ("O" Street, S. 
R. No. 292, 80 foot right-of-way); thence North 0 degrees 26 minutes East 
along the said Easterly right-of-way line for a distance of 348.77 feet; 
thence South 89 degrees 37 minutes 30 seconds East for a distance of 
100.00 feet; thence North 0 degrees 26 minutes East for a distance of 
84.69 feet to the said Southerly right-of-way line of Fairfield Drive; 
thence South 89 degrees 26 minutes 50 seconds East along the said 
Southerly right-of-way line for a distance of 315.03 feet to the point of 
beginning; lying and being in Lot 15, Section 17, Township 2 South, Range 
30 West, Escambia County, Florida.  
 PARCEL 2  
 Commence at the Northeast corner of Lot 15 of the Brainerd and 
McIntyre Subdivision of Section 17, Township 2 South, Range 30 West, 
Escambia County, Florida, and run thence Southerly 25 feet to Northerly 
line of Pottery Plant Road; thence run Westerly a distance of 300 feet; 
thence run Southerly a distance of 325 feet; thence run Westerly a 
distance of 237.5 feet to the Point of Beginning of the property hereby 
conveyed; from said point of beginning continue North 89 degrees  
37-1/2 minutes West 277.47 feet; thence run South 72 degrees 42 minutes 
14 seconds West a distance of 100 feet; thence run South 48 degrees 20 
minutes 16 seconds West a distance of 100 feet; thence run South 30 
degrees 40 minutes West 146.17 feet; thence run North 89 degrees 37-1/2 
minutes West 135 feet; thence run South 1 degree 41-1/2 minutes West 200 
feet; thence run South 89 degrees 37-1/2 minutes East 135 feet; thence 
run South 27 degrees 36 minutes East 255.70 feet; thence run South 89 
degrees 17 minutes East 395.67 feet, thence run North 1 degree 13-1/2 
minutes East 651.76 feet to the Point of Beginning, all lying and being 
in Section 17, Township 2 South, Range 30 West, Escambia County, Florida. 
It is the intent of the Grantor to convey all property bounded by 



property of Escambia County on the East and South, to the Kathryn C. 
McDonald property on the South and to the right of way of Pace Boulevard 
on the West.  
 LESS AND EXCEPT the following described portion thereof:  
Commence at the Northwest corner of that certain parcel of land conveyed 
to Kathryn C. McDonald in that certain deed to her recorded in Deed Book 
459 at Page 158 of the public records of Escambia County, Florida; thence 
continue Easterly along the Northern boundary of said parcel a distance 
of approximately 135 feet to the Easterly boundary of said parcel for a 
Point of Beginning; thence continue along an extension of said Northerly 
boundary approximately 125 feet to a point at the intersection of said 
extension with an extension Northwardly of the East boundary line of the 
property conveyed to Perry E. and Lawrence L. Hopkins by a deed recorded 
in Deed Book 264 at Page 457 of the public records of said county; thence 
run Southerly along said Northwardly extension approximately 225.52 feet 
to the Easterly most boundary of the property conveyed to Kathryn C. 
McDonald by the aforementioned deed recorded in Deed Book 459 at Page 
158; thence run Northwesterly along the Easterly boundary line of the 
parcel described in Deed Book 459 at Page 158 approximately 255.70 feet 
to the point of beginning.  
 PARCEL 3  
 A parcel of land 45.7 feet wide located to the East of the East 
boundary of the property conveyed by G. R. McDonald to Kathryn C. 
McDonald by deed dated December 28, 1956, recorded in Deed Book 459, Page 
180 of the public records of Escambia County, Florida and to the East of 
the East boundary of the property conveyed by G. R. McDonald to Perry E. 
Hopkins and Lawrence L. Hopkins by deed dated July 30, 1947, recorded in 
Deed Book 264, Page 457 of the public records of said county, also 
located to the West of the West boundary line of the property conveyed by 
G. R. McDonald and Kathryn C. McDonald to Escambia County, Florida by 
deed recorded in Official Record Book 1182, Page 55 of the public records 
of said County.  
 PARCEL 4  
 Commence at the Northwest corner of that certain parcel of land 
conveyed to Kathryn C. McDonald in that certain deed to her recorded in 
Deed Book 459 at Page 180 of the public records of Escambia County, 
Florida; thence continue easterly along the Northern boundary of said 
parcel a distance of approximately 135 feet to the Easterly boundary of 
said parcel for a Point of Beginning; thence continue along an extension 
of said Northerly boundary approximately 125 feet to a point at the 
intersection of said extension with an extension Northwardly of the East 
boundary line of the property conveyed to Perry E. and Lawrence L. 
Hopkins by a deed recorded in Deed Book 264 at Page 457 of the public 
records of said county; thence run Southerly along said Northwardly 
extension approximately 225.52 feet to the Easterly most boundary of the 
property conveyed to Kathryn C. McDonald by the aforementioned deed 
recorded in Deed Book 459 at Page 180; thence run Northwesterly along the 
Easterly boundary line of the parcel described in Deed Book 459 at Page 
180 approximately 255.70 feet to the point of beginning.  
 It is the intent of the Grantor to convey to the Grantees a 
triangular parcel of property which, when added to the property described 
in that certain deed recorded in Deed Book 459 at Page 180 will produce a 
rectangularly-shaped parcel of property whose North and South boundaries 



will measure approximately 260.93 feet and whose East and West boundaries 
will measure approximately 273.6 feet.  
 PARCEL 5:  
 A parcel of land fronting 273.6 feet on the east side of Pace 
Boulevard (formerly "O" Street) having for its south boundary the north 
line of the property conveyed to Perry E. and Lawrence L. Hopkins by deed 
dated July 30, 1947, recorded in Deed Book 264 at page 457 of the public 
records of said county, having for its east boundary an extension 
northwardly of the east line of the property so conveyed to Perry E. and 
Lawrence L. Hopkins and having for its northeast and north boundaries the 
southwest and south boundaries of the land conveyed to John K. Tringas 
and Constantine J. Tringas and Anna Y. Tringas, his wife by deed dated 
June 11, 1952, recorded in Deed Book 359 at page 142 of the public 
records of said county.  
 And also the right in the grantees, their successors and assigns, 
for ingress and egress, of a strip of land 45.7 feet wide along and lying 
to the east of the east boundary of the property herein conveyed and of 
the property conveyed to Perry E. and Lawrence L. Hopkins as aforesaid. 
 PARCEL 6:  
 Commence at the Northeast corner of Lot 15, Section 17, Township 2 
South, Range 30 West; thence North 89 degrees 37 minutes 30 seconds West 
along the North line of the said lot for a distance of 787.50 feet; 
thence South 1 degree 11 minutes West for a distance of 41.28 feet to a 
point on the Southerly right-of-way line of Fairfield Drive (Pottery 
Road, S.R. #289-A, 80 foot R/W); thence continue South 1 degree 11 
minutes West for a distance of 114.72 feet, thence South 89 degrees 37 
minutes 30 seconds East for a distance of 35 feet to the point of 
beginning; thence continue along the same line South 89 degrees 37 
minutes 30 seconds East a distance of 115 feet; thence South 1 degree 11 
minutes West for a distance of 145 feet; thence North 89 degrees 37 
minutes 30 seconds West a distance of 50 feet; thence North 1 degree 11 
minutes East 110 feet; thence North 89 degrees 37 minutes 30 seconds West 
65 feet; thence North 1 degree 11 minutes East 35 feet to the point of 
beginning. 
      PARCEL 7 
 Beginning at a point on the north line of Lot 15, Section 17, 
Township 2 South, Range 30 West, that is 637.5 feet west of the northeast 
corner of said Lot 15; thence run South 1 degrees 11’ West a distance of 
25 feet to the present south line of Pottery Plant Road for the point of 
beginning of the parcel hereby conveyed; thence continue on same course a 
distance of 100 feet; thence run West parallel to said south line of 
Pottery Plant Road a distance of 150 feet; thence run North 1 degrees 11’ 
East a distance of 100 feet to the south line of said Pottery Plant Road; 
thence East along said south line 150 feet to point of beginning. Less 
and except right of way of State Road #S-289A as shown on Florida 
Department of Transportation map. Section 48550-2602. 
 PARCEL 8 
 Beginning at a point on the north line of said Lot 15 that is 637.5 
feet west of the northeast corner of said lot; thence run South 1 degrees 
11’ West a distance of 125 feet to the point of beginning of the property 
hereby conveyed; thence run North 89 degrees 37.5’ West parallel to the 
south line of Pottery plant Road a distance of 150 feet; thence run South 
1 degrees 11’ West a distance of 31 feet; thence run East parallel to 



said south line of Pottery Plant Road a distance of 150 feet; thence run 
North 1 degree 11’ East a distance of 31 feet to point of beginning. 
 PARCEL 9 
 Begin at a point on the north line of said Lot 15 that is 1202.5 
feet west of the northeast corner of said lot; thence run South a 
distance of 25 feet to the present intersection of the south line of 
Pottery Plant Road with the east line of Pace Boulevard for point of 
beginning of the parcel hereby conveyed; thence run South 89 degrees 
37.5’ East along the south line of said Pottery Plant Road a distance of 
100 feet; thence run South 0 degrees 26’ West parallel to the east line 
of Pace Boulevard a distance of 100 feet; thence run West parallel to 
said south line of Pottery Plant Road a distance of 100 feet to the east 
line of Pace Boulevard; thence North 0 degrees 26’ East along the east 
line of Pace Boulevard 100 feet to the point of beginning.  Less and 
except right of way of State Road #S-289A as shown on Florida Department 
of Transportation map. Section 48550-2602. 
      PARCEL 10 
      Beginning at a point of the north line of said Lot 15 that is 
1202.5 feet west of  the northeast corner of said Lot; thence run South 0 
degrees 26’ West a distance of 574 feet 3 inches, more or less, to a 
point on the east line of Pace Boulevard where the north line of the 
property conveyed by the grantors to John K. Tringas and others by deed 
dated June 11, 1952, recorded in Deed Book 359 at page 142,  intersects 
said east line of Pace Boulevard, this being the point of beginning of 
the property hereby conveyed; thence run North 0 degrees 26’ East along 
said east line of Pace Boulevard a distance of 100 feet; thence run South 
89 degrees 37.5’ East to the point of intersection with the northwesterly 
line of the property conveyed to John K. Tringas and others as aforesaid; 
thence South 30 degrees 40’ West along said northwestern boundary line of 
Tringas Property to its intersection with said north line of the Tringas 
Property; thence North 89 degrees 37.5’ West a distance of 139.9 feet 
along said north line of the Tringas Property to the point of beginning. 
 
 
 
 































 

3363 WEST PARK PLACE • PENSACOLA, FLORIDA  32505 • 850-595-3404 • 850-595-3405 (FAX) 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 

 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Andrew Holmer, Development Services Manager 
   Development Services Department 
 
FROM: Tommy Brown, Transportation Planner 

Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 

THRU: David Forte, Division Manager 
  Transportation & Traffic Operations Division 
 
DATE:  December 21, 2016 
 
RE: Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – LSA-2016-04 
 
TTO Staff has reviewed the Large Scale Amendment (LSA)-2016-04, Escambia County 
Jail Site, Juvenile Justice Center and Surrounding Escambia County Owned Property, 
agenda item for the upcoming Planning Board meeting scheduled for January 3, 2017. 
Please see the below comment. 

 
• LSA-2016-04 – Upon review of regional and local transportation plans, there are 

currently no programmed improvements to the roadway network in the vicinity of 
this application. Seeing none, TTO Staff has no concerns with the Large Scale 
Amendment request. 

 
Please note that TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so 
the comments above hold no bearing on future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process.  
 
 
cc: Horace Jones, Development Services Department Director 

Joy Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Department Director 
 Colby Brown, P.E., Public Works Department Deputy Director 
 
 



Comprehensive Plan  
Large-Scale Future Land Use Map Amendment  

Staff Analysis  
 
General Data 
 
Project Name:  LSA 2016-04 – Escambia County Jail Site, Juvenile Justice Center 

and Surrounding Escambia County Owned Property. 
Location:  2816 N Pace Boulevard, 3080 N Pace Boulevard, 1800 St Mary 

Street, 1807 W Fairfield Drive.     
 
Parcel #s:  17-2S-30-5015-000-002 (Juvenile Justice Center and Escambia 

County Jail) 
   17-2S-30-5015-000-009  
   17-2S-30-5015-002-001  
   17-2S-30-5015-003-001 
    
Acreage:  29.30 (+/-) acres 
Request:  From Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) and Commercial (C) to Public (P). 
   
Agent:  Escambia County 
Meeting Dates: Planning Board, January 5, 2017 
   BCC January 19, 2017 
 

Site Description and Summary of Proposed Amendment: 
The applicant requests a Future Land Use (FLU) map amendment to change the FLU 
category of a 29.30 (+/-) acre contiguous four-parcel site from Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) 
and Commercial (C) to Public (P). The current zoning designation of the referenced 
parcels is HC/LI and HDR. The county proposes to rezone to Public (P) (case number 
Z-2016-15) pending the approval of this FLU amendment. The FLU amendment 
proposed is to make existing county government or other public institutions or agencies 
on already Escambia County owned property compliant with the 2030 Comprehensive 
Plan. Escambia County is proposing a new county jail site on this location. 
The contiguous four parcels are located along the north of St Mary Street, South of 
Fairfield Drive, West of N “L” Street and East of Pace Boulevard. The properties are 
built out consisting of the Escambia Jail complex and Juvenile Justice Center.  
The area to the south are residential and commercial uses and zoned High Density 
Residential (HDR), Heavy Commercial/Light Industrial (HC/LI) and Commercial (Com). 
To the west and north the zoning consists of Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial 
(HC/LI) with all commercial type uses. To the east is zoned Public (P) where Escambia 
County Jail Administration and Escambia County Area Transit (ECAT) is located.   



LSA 2016-04 - Escambia County Jail Complex and Surrounding Parcels. 

 

Analysis of Availability of Facilities and Services:  
The availability of public facilities and services for the site of a Future Land Use map 
amendment requires analysis of the general demands of its proposed use.  All specific 
level of service (LOS) standards established by Escambia County are evaluated for 
compliance during the review processes prescribed by the LDC for approval of 
proposed development. 

Sanitary Sewer Service. 
CP Policy INF 1.1.7  Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Average LOS standard for 
wastewater service is 210 gallons per residential connection per day, and the peak LOS 
will be 350 gallons per residential connection per day.  For nonresidential uses, the LOS 
requirements will be based upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC), as may 
be recalculated by the service provider from time to time, and on the size of the 
nonresidential water meter.  Escambia County will continue to work with the water 
providers to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 

CP Policy INF 1.1.11  Required New Service Connection.  All new structures 
intended for human occupancy will connect to the ECUA wastewater system unless 
ECUA has determined that it is not feasible to provide wastewater service to the 
proposed structures.  Those structures not required to connect to the ECUA wastewater 
system will not be issued a building permit until the applicant has obtained the 
appropriate permit from the Health Department. 

Analysis: The subject property is within the service area of the Emerald Coast Utility 
Authority (ECUA) for sanitary sewer and is already development.  Any new proposed 
development will have a complete review during the Development Review Process. 

Solid Waste Disposal.   
CP Policy INF 2.1.2  Perdido Landfill Operation.  Escambia County will provide and 
operate the Perdido Landfill so as to accommodate the municipal solid waste disposal 
needs of the entire County. 
CP Policy INF 2.1.4  Level of Service (LOS) Standards. The LOS standard for solid 
waste disposal will be 6 pounds per capita per day. 

Analysis: The subject area is within the service area of ECUA and meets the adopted 
level of services standards in the Comprehensive Plan. Based on population growth 
projections and estimated annual Class 1 municipal solid waste received, the Perdido 
Landfill can accommodate the development. 

Potable Water Service.   
CP Policy INF 4.1.4  Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of potable water facilities concurrent with the demand for such facilities but no 

Page 2 of 7 



LSA 2016-04 - Escambia County Jail Complex and Surrounding Parcels. 

later than the certificate of occupancy, as created by development or redevelopment 
through the implementation of the Concurrency Management System. 
CP Policy INF 4.1.6  Developer Responsibility.  The cost of water line extensions 
made necessary by new development will be the responsibility of the developer unless 
otherwise funded by the service provider. 
CP Policy INF 4.1.7  Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for 
potable water service within Escambia County will be 250 gallons per residential 
connection per day.  For non-residential uses, the LOS requirements will be based upon 
an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) to be calculated by the service provider at 
the time of application.  Escambia County will continue to work with the water providers 
to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 

Analysis: The subject area is within the service area of ECUA for potable water and 
meets the adopted level of services standards in the Comprehensive Plan. Any new 
proposed development will have a complete review during the Development Review 
Process. 

Stormwater Management. 
CP Policy INF 3.1.5  Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for such 
facilities as created by development or redevelopment through implementation of the 
Concurrency Management System. 
CP Policy INF 3.1.6  Developer Responsibilities.  Installation of stormwater 
management facilities made necessary by new development will be the responsibility 
of the developer. 
CP Policy INF 3.1.7  Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Stormwater management 
LOS will be monitored through the provisions in the LDC design standards.  
Analysis: The current site is mostly built out and a stormwater management system is 
already in place. Escambia County Public Works is in the process of improving the 
overall stormwater in the area as a major concern of flooding has occurred in major rain 
events.   

Streets and Access.   
CP Policy MOB 1.1.1  Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Levels of Service (LOS) will 
be used to evaluate facility capacity.  Escambia County will adopt LOS standards for all 
roadways as indicated in the LDC.  The standards for SIS facilities may be revised based 
on changes to the federal classification of these roadways.  These standards are not 
regulatory but provide a basis by which the County may monitor congestion and 
coordinate needed improvements with FDOT. 

Analysis: The FLU amendment is for a developed area. Any new development will 
have to submit for Development Review Process.  
Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Staff has reviewed the Large Scale 
Amendment (LSA)-2016-04, Escambia County Jail Site, Juvenile Justice Center and 

Page 3 of 7 



LSA 2016-04 - Escambia County Jail Complex and Surrounding Parcels. 

Surrounding Escambia County Owned Property, agenda item for the upcoming 
Planning Board meeting scheduled for January 3, 2017. Please see the below 
comment.  
• LSA-2016-04 – Upon review of regional and local transportation plans, there are 
currently no programmed improvements to the roadway network in the vicinity of this 
application. Seeing none, TTO Staff has no concerns with the Large Scale Amendment 
request.  
Please note that TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so 
the comments above hold no bearing on future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process. 

Public School Facilities.   
CP Policy ICE 1.3.1  Interlocal Agreement for Public School Facility Planning.  In 
cooperation with the School Board and the local governments within Escambia County, 
the County will implement the Interlocal Agreement for Public School Facility Planning 
(herein Interlocal Agreement) that establishes procedures for coordination and sharing 
of information, planning processes, and  implementation. 
Analysis: The FLU amendment does not include any impact on public schools.  
Analysis of Suitability of Amendment for Proposed Use: 
The suitability of a Future Land Use map amendment for its proposed use requires an 
analysis of the characteristics of the site and its resources relative to Comprehensive 
Plan (CP) goals, objectives, and policies.  For these purposes, suitability is the degree 
to which the existing characteristics and limitations of land and water are compatible 
with the proposed use or development.  Compliance with specific regulations and 
standards established by Escambia County, including those for public facilities and 
services, are evaluated during the development review processes prescribed by the 
LDC for approval of proposed development. 

Impact on Land Use. 
CP Policy FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories.  General descriptions, range of 
allowable uses, and residential densities and non-residential intensities for all future land 
use categories in Escambia County are outlined in Table 1 [of the Escambia County 
Comprehensive Plan].  
Analysis: The referenced Comprehensive Plan table describes the current MU-U FLU 
as intended for an intense mix of residential and non-residential uses while promoting 
compatible infill development and the separation of urban and suburban land uses 
within the category as a whole. Residential density is limited to 25 dwelling units per 
acre. The Comprehensive Plan table describes the current C FLU as intended for 
professional office, retail, wholesale, service and general business trade. Residential 
development may be permitted only if secondary to a primary commercial development.  
The proposed amendment FLU, as described by the same policy, is intended to provide 
for uses or facilities owned or managed by the Federal, State, or county government or 

Page 4 of 7 



LSA 2016-04 - Escambia County Jail Complex and Surrounding Parcels. 

other public institutions or agencies. Residential density within the Public category has 
no limits on dwelling units per acre. 
Approval of the amendment would allow for zoning to be consistent with the existing 
land use that is owned by Escambia County and create a consisted zoning for the 
existing use that is currently already developed.  

Impact on Wellheads. 
CP Policy CON 1.4.1 Wellhead Protection.  Escambia County will provide 
comprehensive wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current and future 
public water supplies. The provisions will establish specific wellhead protection areas 
and address incompatible land uses, including prohibited activities and materials, within 
those areas. 

Analysis: The southeast section of the property is located in the 20 year wellhead 
protection area. This section of the property is already fully developed. The FLU 
Amendment will not impact the area. Any new development will have to submit for 
Development Review Process.   
Impact on Historically Significant Sites. 
 
CP Policy FLU 1.2.1  State Assistance.  Escambia County will utilize all available 
resources of the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources in the 
identification of archeological and/or historic sites or structures within the County and will 
utilize guidance, direction, and technical assistance received from this agency. 

Analysis: The FLU amendment does not have any significant impacts. During times of 
development review if any historic or archeological resources or structures are 
discovered the county will take the appropriate guidance, direction and technical 
assistance.    

Impact on the Natural Environment. 
CP Policy CON 1.1.2  Wetland and Habitat Indicators.  Escambia County has 
adopted and will use the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County Soils 
Survey, and the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s (FFWCC) 
LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential presence of wetlands or listed wildlife 
habitat in the review of applications for development approval.  
CP Policy CON 1.1.6  Habitat Protection. Escambia County will coordinate with the 
FDEP, FFWCC, and other state or federal agencies so as to provide the fullest 
protection to marine or wildlife habitats that may be impacted by existing or proposed 
development within the County. 
CP Policy CON 1.3.1  Stormwater Management. Escambia County will protect surface 
water quality by implementing the stormwater management policies of the Infrastructure 
Element to improve existing stormwater management systems and ensure the provision 
of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for such facilities. 
CP Policy CON 1.3.6  Wetland Development Provisions. Development in wetlands 
will not be allowed unless sufficient uplands do not exist to avoid a taking.  In this case, 

Page 5 of 7 



LSA 2016-04 - Escambia County Jail Complex and Surrounding Parcels. 

development in wetlands will be restricted to allow residential density uses as indicated 
by the LDC: 
CP Policy CON 1.6.3  Tree Protection.  Escambia County will protect trees through 
LDC provisions. 

Analysis: The proposed FLU amendment will not have an impact beyond existing 
development.    

Urban Sprawl 
CP Objective FLU 1.3  Future Land Use Map Designations.  Designate land uses on 
the FLUM to discourage urban sprawl, promote mixed use, compact development in 
urban areas, and support development compatible with the protection and preservation 
of rural areas.” 
Analysis: The proposed FLU amendment would discourage urban sprawl through the 
characteristics of the existing development pattern and already developed area.   
 
CP Policy FLU 2.2.1 Location. Public facilities and services will be located to minimize 
their cost and negative impacts on the natural environment and maximize their 
efficiency. Cost alternatives, impacts on the environment, and levels of efficiency will be 
discussed during the design phase and bid process utilized by the County to accomplish 
the installation or location of public facilities and/or services. In addition, the County will 
coordinate with the ECUA, other water and/or sewer providers, and state or federal 
agencies with facilities located in the County or with plans to expand existing facilities or 
create new facilities in the County. Among other things, it is the intent of this policy that 
public facilities and services are available to support the densities and intensities of 
uses provided by this Plan and the FLUM and that there is adequate and suitable land 
available for such utility facilities. 
 
CP Policy FLU 2.2.4 Existing Facilities. Prior to embarking on the construction of new 
capital improvements, Escambia County will consider the feasibility of upgrading or 
rehabilitating existing facilities to determine if the rehabilitation of present facilities would 
be in the best interest of the County and its citizens. 
 
Analysis: The proposed FLU amendment site has already been developed to 
encompass several blocks of already public facilities in a central location to maximize 
the efficiency to the public. The FLU amendment proposed is to make existing county 
government or other public institutions or agencies on already Escambia County owned 
property compliant with the 2030 Comprehensive Plan.  
Under section 1-1.7.3 Nonconformance. Lawfully established and maintained uses, 
structures, site conditions, and lots made nonconforming by later adoption or 
amendment of any land development regulations may continue, subject to the 
nonconformance provisions of Article 2.The provisions protect the interests of owners in 
continuing to use their property while providing the community a gradual remedy for 
existing undesirable conditions resulting from nonconformance. Actions that would 
expand nonconformance are prohibited and actions that would make nonconformance 

Page 6 of 7 



LSA 2016-04 - Escambia County Jail Complex and Surrounding Parcels. 

more permanent are restricted. Nothing in the LDC shall be interpreted as authorizing or 
approving the continuation or expansion of any uses, structures, conditions, or lots not 
lawfully established according to regulations in effect at the time of establishment.  
 
Article 2 Nonconformance 
Sec. 1-2.1 Purpose of article.  
The purpose of this article is to establish land use regulations that define the legal 
status of nonconformance with LDC regulations, prohibit the expansion of any 
nonconformance, restrict activities that would make any nonconformance more 
permanent, and correct nonconformance to the extent practical. This article establishes 
specific provisions through which nonconforming uses, structures, lots and site 
conditions may be maintained, altered or reconstructed, and conditions under which the 
nonconformance is terminated.  
 
Sec. 1-2.2 General conditions.  
(a) Continuation. Lawfully established and maintained uses, structures, lots and site 
conditions that no longer comply with one or more land development regulations may 
continue in productive use as legal exceptions to those regulations only as prescribed 
by the nonconformance provisions of this article and related sections of the LDC. In 
allowing the continuation of such nonconformance it remains the intent of the LDC to 
prohibit the expansion and limit the alteration or reconstruction of nonconformities, and 
to discourage the continuation of those that are inconsistent with the purposes of 
applicable regulations. Where multiple nonconformities exist, each must comply with the 
provisions regarding their lawful continuation.  
(b) Nonconformance status. Any nonconformance status of a use, structure, lot or site 
condition runs with the land and is not lost by changes of ownership, or management. 
However, once nonconforming status is lost, the use, structure, lot or condition shall 
comply with current LDC regulations. For the purposes of determining whether the right 
to continue a nonconformance is lost, all of the activities and structures on a lot are 
generally to be considered as a whole. For example, a unit vacancy in a nonconforming 
multi-tenant building does not result in the loss of the right to rent the unit if the use of 
the building as a whole is maintained.  
 
 

Page 7 of 7 





ORDINANCE NUMBER 2017-___ 1 
2 

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 3 
PART II OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 4 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 2030, AS AMENDED; 5 
AMENDING CHAPTER 7, “THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT,” 6 
POLICY FLU 1.1.1, TO PROVIDE FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE  2030 7 
FUTURE LAND USE MAP, CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE 8 
CATEGORY OF  FOUR CONTIGUOUS  PARCELS; CHANGING A 9 
PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 2S, RANGE 30W, PARCEL 10 
NUMBER 5015-000-002 TOTALING 14.78 (+/-) ACRES, LOCATED AT 11 
1800 ST MARY STREET, FROM MIXED USE URBAN (MU-U) TO 12 
PUBLIC (P);  CHANGING A PARCEL  WITHIN SECTION 17, 13 
TOWNSHIP 2S, RANGE 30W, PARCEL NUMBER 5015-000-009 14 
TOTALING 1.72 (+/-) ACRES, LOCATED AT 2816 N PACE 15 
BOULEVARD, FROM MIXED USE URBAN (MU-U) TO PUBLIC (P); 16 
CHANGING A PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 2S, RANGE 17 
30W, PARCEL NUMBER 5015-002-001 TOTALING 12.38 (+/-) ACRES, 18 
LOCATED AT 3080 N PACE BOULEVARD, FROM COMMERCIAL (C) 19 
TO PUBLIC (P); AND CHANGING A PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 17, 20 
TOWNSHIP 2S, RANGE 30W, PARCEL NUMBER 5015-003-001 21 
TOTALING 0.22 (+/-) ACRES, LOCATED AT 1807 W FAIRFIELD 22 
DRIVE, FROM COMMERCIAL (C) TO PUBLIC (P);   ALL PARCELS 23 
TOTALING 29.3 (+/-) ACRES; PROVIDING FOR A TITLE; PROVIDING 24 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 25 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  26 

 27 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, Escambia County 28 
adopted its Comprehensive Plan on April 29, 2014; and  29 
 30 
WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County 31 
Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida to prepare, amend and enforce 32 
comprehensive plans for the development of the County; and 33 
 34 
WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and 35 
forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to approve 36 
changes (amendments) to the Comprehensive Plan; and 37 
 38 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that 39 
the adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;  40 
 41 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of 42 
Escambia County, Florida, as follows: 43 

44 
45 

PB: January 3, 2017 Page 1 
Re: LSA-2016-04 
Draft PB 2 



Section 1. Purpose and Intent 1 
 2 
This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the 3 
authority set out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, 4 
Florida Statutes. 5 
 6 
Section 2. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment 7 

8 
This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled – "Large Scale Amendment 9 
2016-04."   10 
 11 
Section 3.  Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map 12 

13 
The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part II of the 14 
Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 15 
2030, as amended; Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all 16 
notations, references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the 17 
following future land use changes: 18 
 19 
(A) A parcel within Section 17, Township 2S, Range 30W, parcel number 20 

5015-000-002 and totaling 14.78 (+/-) acres, located at 1800 St. Mary 21 
Street, as more particularly described in the two split Boundary Survey 22 
descriptions one produced  by Pittman Glaze and Associates, Inc., 23 
Professional Engineering & Surveying Services as Exhibit A, and the 24 
second Boundary Survey description produced by Hatch Mott MacDonald, 25 
LLC., Professional Engineering & Surveying Services as Exhibit B, from  26 
Mixed Use Urban (MU-U) to Public (P); 27 

(B) A parcel within Section 17, Township 2S, Range 30W, parcel number 28 
5015-000-009 and totaling 1.72 (+/-) acres, located at 2816 N Pace 29 
Boulevard, as more particularly described in the Boundary Survey 30 
description produced by Pittman Glaze and Associates, Inc., Professional 31 
Engineering & Surveying Services as Exhibit C, from Mixed Use Urban 32 
(MU-U) to Public (P); 33 

(C) A parcel within Section 17, Township 2S, Range 30W, parcel number 34 
parcel number 5015-002-001 and totaling 12.38 (+/-) acres, located at 35 
3080 N Pace Boulevard, as more particularly described in the Boundary 36 
Survey description produced by Pittman Glaze and Associates, Inc., 37 
Professional Engineering & Surveying Services as Exhibit C, from 38 
Commercial (C) to Public (P); 39 

(D)  And a parcel within Section 17, Township 2S, Range 30W, parcel number 40 
5015-003-001 and totaling 0.22 acres located at 1807 W Fairfield Drive, 41 
as more particularly described in the Boundary Survey description 42 
produced by Pittman Glaze and Associates, Inc., Professional Engineering 43 

PB: January 3, 2017 Page 2 
Re: LSA-2016-04 
Draft PB 2 



& Surveying Services as Exhibit C from Commercial (C) to Public (P); all1 
parcels totaling 29.3 (+/-) acres. 2 

Section 4.     Severability 3 
 4 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 5 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect 6 
the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 7 
 8 
Section 5. Inclusion in the Code 9 

10 
It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 11 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that 12 
the sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or 13 
relettered and the word "ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other 14 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 15 
 16 
Section 6.  Effective Date 17 

18 
Pursuant to Section 163.3184(3)(c)(4), Florida Statutes, this Ordinance shall not 19 
become effective until 31 days after the Department of Economic Opportunity notifies 20 
Escambia County that the plan amendment package is complete.  If timely challenged, 21 
this Ordinance shall not become effective until the Department of Economic Opportunity 22 
or the Administration Commission enters a final order determining the Ordinance to be 23 
in compliance.     24 
 25 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2017. 26 

27 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 28 

OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 29 
30 
31 

By: _________________________________ 32 
D.B. Underhill, Chairman 33 

ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS 34 
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 35 

36 
By: ___________________________   37 

Deputy Clerk 38 
(SEAL) 39 

40 
 41 
ENACTED: 42 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 43 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 44 

PB: January 3, 2017 Page 3 
Re: LSA-2016-04 
Draft PB 2 



Exhibit A



Exhibit B



Exhibit C





LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
PARCEL 1 
Commence at the Northeast corner of Lot 15, Section 17, Township 2 

South, Range 30 West; thence North 89 degrees 37 minutes 30 seconds West 
along the North line of the said lot for a distance of 787.50 feet; 
thence South 1 degree 11 minutes West for a distance of 41.28 feet to a 
point on the Southerly right-of-way line of Fairfield Drive (Pottery 
Road, S.R. No. 289-A, 80 foot right-of-way) to the point of beginning; 
Thence continue South 1 degree 11 minutes West for a distance of 114.72 
feet; thence South 89 degrees 37 minutes 30 seconds East for a distance 
of 150.00 feet; thence South 1 degree 11 minutes West for a distance of 
144.00 feet; thence South  89 degrees 37 minutes 30 seconds East for a 
distance of 100.00 feet; thence South 1 degree 11 minutes West for a 
distance of 50.00 feet to the Tringas property as described in the deed 
recorded in Deed Book 359 at page 142 of the public records of Escambia 
County, Florida; thence North 89 degrees 37 minutes 30 seconds West along 
the North line of the said Tringas property for a distance of 277.47 
feet; thence South 72 degrees 42 minutes 14 seconds West for a distance 
of 100.00 feet; thence South 48 degrees 20 minutes 16 seconds West for a 
distance of 100.00 feet; thence South 30 degrees 40 minutes West for a 
distance of 30.36 feet to a point that is 100.00 feet North of (as 
measured at a right angle) to the North line of that portion of the 
Tringas property that abuts Pace Boulevard; thence North 89 degrees 37 
minutes 30 seconds West parallel to and 100 feet North of that portion of 
the Tringas property that abuts Pace Boulevard for a distance of 198.51 
feet to the Easterly right-of-way line of Pace Boulevard ("O" Street, S. 
R. No. 292, 80 foot right-of-way); thence North 0 degrees 26 minutes East 
along the said Easterly right-of-way line for a distance of 348.77 feet; 
thence South 89 degrees 37 minutes 30 seconds East for a distance of 
100.00 feet; thence North 0 degrees 26 minutes East for a distance of 
84.69 feet to the said Southerly right-of-way line of Fairfield Drive; 
thence South 89 degrees 26 minutes 50 seconds East along the said 
Southerly right-of-way line for a distance of 315.03 feet to the point of 
beginning; lying and being in Lot 15, Section 17, Township 2 South, Range 
30 West, Escambia County, Florida.  

PARCEL 2  
Commence at the Northeast corner of Lot 15 of the Brainerd and 

McIntyre Subdivision of Section 17, Township 2 South, Range 30 West, 
Escambia County, Florida, and run thence Southerly 25 feet to Northerly 
line of Pottery Plant Road; thence run Westerly a distance of 300 feet; 
thence run Southerly a distance of 325 feet; thence run Westerly a 
distance of 237.5 feet to the Point of Beginning of the property hereby 
conveyed; from said point of beginning continue North 89 degrees  
37-1/2 minutes West 277.47 feet; thence run South 72 degrees 42 minutes 
14 seconds West a distance of 100 feet; thence run South 48 degrees 20 
minutes 16 seconds West a distance of 100 feet; thence run South 30 
degrees 40 minutes West 146.17 feet; thence run North 89 degrees 37-1/2 
minutes West 135 feet; thence run South 1 degree 41-1/2 minutes West 200 
feet; thence run South 89 degrees 37-1/2 minutes East 135 feet; thence 
run South 27 degrees 36 minutes East 255.70 feet; thence run South 89 
degrees 17 minutes East 395.67 feet, thence run North 1 degree 13-1/2 
minutes East 651.76 feet to the Point of Beginning, all lying and being 
in Section 17, Township 2 South, Range 30 West, Escambia County, Florida. 
It is the intent of the Grantor to convey all property bounded by 



property of Escambia County on the East and South, to the Kathryn C. 
McDonald property on the South and to the right of way of Pace Boulevard 
on the West.  

LESS AND EXCEPT the following described portion thereof:  
Commence at the Northwest corner of that certain parcel of land conveyed 
to Kathryn C. McDonald in that certain deed to her recorded in Deed Book 
459 at Page 158 of the public records of Escambia County, Florida; thence 
continue Easterly along the Northern boundary of said parcel a distance 
of approximately 135 feet to the Easterly boundary of said parcel for a 
Point of Beginning; thence continue along an extension of said Northerly 
boundary approximately 125 feet to a point at the intersection of said 
extension with an extension Northwardly of the East boundary line of the 
property conveyed to Perry E. and Lawrence L. Hopkins by a deed recorded 
in Deed Book 264 at Page 457 of the public records of said county; thence 
run Southerly along said Northwardly extension approximately 225.52 feet 
to the Easterly most boundary of the property conveyed to Kathryn C. 
McDonald by the aforementioned deed recorded in Deed Book 459 at Page 
158; thence run Northwesterly along the Easterly boundary line of the 
parcel described in Deed Book 459 at Page 158 approximately 255.70 feet 
to the point of beginning.  

PARCEL 3 
A parcel of land 45.7 feet wide located to the East of the East 

boundary of the property conveyed by G. R. McDonald to Kathryn C. 
McDonald by deed dated December 28, 1956, recorded in Deed Book 459, Page 
180 of the public records of Escambia County, Florida and to the East of 
the East boundary of the property conveyed by G. R. McDonald to Perry E. 
Hopkins and Lawrence L. Hopkins by deed dated July 30, 1947, recorded in 
Deed Book 264, Page 457 of the public records of said county, also 
located to the West of the West boundary line of the property conveyed by 
G. R. McDonald and Kathryn C. McDonald to Escambia County, Florida by 
deed recorded in Official Record Book 1182, Page 55 of the public records 
of said County.  

PARCEL 4  
Commence at the Northwest corner of that certain parcel of land 

conveyed to Kathryn C. McDonald in that certain deed to her recorded in 
Deed Book 459 at Page 180 of the public records of Escambia County, 
Florida; thence continue easterly along the Northern boundary of said 
parcel a distance of approximately 135 feet to the Easterly boundary of 
said parcel for a Point of Beginning; thence continue along an extension 
of said Northerly boundary approximately 125 feet to a point at the 
intersection of said extension with an extension Northwardly of the East 
boundary line of the property conveyed to Perry E. and Lawrence L. 
Hopkins by a deed recorded in Deed Book 264 at Page 457 of the public 
records of said county; thence run Southerly along said Northwardly 
extension approximately 225.52 feet to the Easterly most boundary of the 
property conveyed to Kathryn C. McDonald by the aforementioned deed 
recorded in Deed Book 459 at Page 180; thence run Northwesterly along the 
Easterly boundary line of the parcel described in Deed Book 459 at Page 
180 approximately 255.70 feet to the point of beginning.  

It is the intent of the Grantor to convey to the Grantees a 
triangular parcel of property which, when added to the property described 
in that certain deed recorded in Deed Book 459 at Page 180 will produce a 
rectangularly-shaped parcel of property whose North and South boundaries 



will measure approximately 260.93 feet and whose East and West boundaries 
will measure approximately 273.6 feet.  

PARCEL 5: 
A parcel of land fronting 273.6 feet on the east side of Pace 

Boulevard (formerly "O" Street) having for its south boundary the north 
line of the property conveyed to Perry E. and Lawrence L. Hopkins by deed 
dated July 30, 1947, recorded in Deed Book 264 at page 457 of the public 
records of said county, having for its east boundary an extension 
northwardly of the east line of the property so conveyed to Perry E. and 
Lawrence L. Hopkins and having for its northeast and north boundaries the 
southwest and south boundaries of the land conveyed to John K. Tringas 
and Constantine J. Tringas and Anna Y. Tringas, his wife by deed dated 
June 11, 1952, recorded in Deed Book 359 at page 142 of the public 
records of said county.  

And also the right in the grantees, their successors and assigns, 
for ingress and egress, of a strip of land 45.7 feet wide along and lying 
to the east of the east boundary of the property herein conveyed and of 
the property conveyed to Perry E. and Lawrence L. Hopkins as aforesaid. 

PARCEL 6: 
Commence at the Northeast corner of Lot 15, Section 17, Township 2 

South, Range 30 West; thence North 89 degrees 37 minutes 30 seconds West 
along the North line of the said lot for a distance of 787.50 feet; 
thence South 1 degree 11 minutes West for a distance of 41.28 feet to a 
point on the Southerly right-of-way line of Fairfield Drive (Pottery 
Road, S.R. #289-A, 80 foot R/W); thence continue South 1 degree 11 
minutes West for a distance of 114.72 feet, thence South 89 degrees 37 
minutes 30 seconds East for a distance of 35 feet to the point of 
beginning; thence continue along the same line South 89 degrees 37 
minutes 30 seconds East a distance of 115 feet; thence South 1 degree 11 
minutes West for a distance of 145 feet; thence North 89 degrees 37 
minutes 30 seconds West a distance of 50 feet; thence North 1 degree 11 
minutes East 110 feet; thence North 89 degrees 37 minutes 30 seconds West 
65 feet; thence North 1 degree 11 minutes East 35 feet to the point of 
beginning. 

 PARCEL 7 
Beginning at a point on the north line of Lot 15, Section 17, 

Township 2 South, Range 30 West, that is 637.5 feet west of the northeast 
corner of said Lot 15; thence run South 1 degrees 11’ West a distance of 
25 feet to the present south line of Pottery Plant Road for the point of 
beginning of the parcel hereby conveyed; thence continue on same course a 
distance of 100 feet; thence run West parallel to said south line of 
Pottery Plant Road a distance of 150 feet; thence run North 1 degrees 11’ 
East a distance of 100 feet to the south line of said Pottery Plant Road; 
thence East along said south line 150 feet to point of beginning. Less 
and except right of way of State Road #S-289A as shown on Florida 
Department of Transportation map. Section 48550-2602. 

PARCEL 8 
Beginning at a point on the north line of said Lot 15 that is 637.5 

feet west of the northeast corner of said lot; thence run South 1 degrees 
11’ West a distance of 125 feet to the point of beginning of the property 
hereby conveyed; thence run North 89 degrees 37.5’ West parallel to the 
south line of Pottery plant Road a distance of 150 feet; thence run South 
1 degrees 11’ West a distance of 31 feet; thence run East parallel to 



said south line of Pottery Plant Road a distance of 150 feet; thence run 
North 1 degree 11’ East a distance of 31 feet to point of beginning. 

PARCEL 9 
Begin at a point on the north line of said Lot 15 that is 1202.5 

feet west of the northeast corner of said lot; thence run South a 
distance of 25 feet to the present intersection of the south line of 
Pottery Plant Road with the east line of Pace Boulevard for point of 
beginning of the parcel hereby conveyed; thence run South 89 degrees 
37.5’ East along the south line of said Pottery Plant Road a distance of 
100 feet; thence run South 0 degrees 26’ West parallel to the east line 
of Pace Boulevard a distance of 100 feet; thence run West parallel to 
said south line of Pottery Plant Road a distance of 100 feet to the east 
line of Pace Boulevard; thence North 0 degrees 26’ East along the east 
line of Pace Boulevard 100 feet to the point of beginning.  Less and 
except right of way of State Road #S-289A as shown on Florida Department 
of Transportation map. Section 48550-2602. 

 PARCEL 10 
 Beginning at a point of the north line of said Lot 15 that is 

1202.5 feet west of  the northeast corner of said Lot; thence run South 0 
degrees 26’ West a distance of 574 feet 3 inches, more or less, to a 
point on the east line of Pace Boulevard where the north line of the 
property conveyed by the grantors to John K. Tringas and others by deed 
dated June 11, 1952, recorded in Deed Book 359 at page 142,  intersects 
said east line of Pace Boulevard, this being the point of beginning of 
the property hereby conveyed; thence run North 0 degrees 26’ East along 
said east line of Pace Boulevard a distance of 100 feet; thence run South 
89 degrees 37.5’ East to the point of intersection with the northwesterly 
line of the property conveyed to John K. Tringas and others as aforesaid; 
thence South 30 degrees 40’ West along said northwestern boundary line of 
Tringas Property to its intersection with said north line of the Tringas 
Property; thence North 89 degrees 37.5’ West a distance of 139.9 feet 
along said north line of the Tringas Property to the point of beginning. 



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. B.           
Meeting Date: 01/03/2017  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending LDC

Chapters 5 and 6
From: Horace Jones, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
 A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending LDC Chapters 5
and 6

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
adoption, an Ordinance amending the Land Development Code (LDC), Chapters 5 and
6, to clarify enforcement, mitigation, and other tree protection and landscaping provisions.

BACKGROUND:
The proposed amendments will remedy deficiencies in minimum landscaping and tree
protection standards, and will better identify enforcement and mitigation responsibilities
in the violations of those standards.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by
Meredith Crawford, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments are
attached herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Amendment of the LDC requires public hearing review and recommendation by the
Board prior to action by the BCC.  The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the BCC’s
goal “to increase citizen involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government
activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:



This Ordinance, amending the LDC, will be filed with the Department of State following
adoption by the BCC.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and
distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with  the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Background
Draft Ordinance



 

PB 1-3-17 
Re: Landscaping and Tree Protection 
Draft PB 1 Page 1 

Proposed LDC Text with Explanatory Notes 1 

 2 

Article 7 Landscaping and Tree Protection 3 

Sec. 5-7.1 Purpose of article.   4 

This article establishes land development standards for landscaping and tree protection 5 
that implement Comprehensive Plan policies requiring the promotion, protection, and 6 
preservation of trees and other vegetation development to apply professional practices 7 
for landscaping and tree protection.  It is the intent of these standards to promote 8 
support the environmental and community benefits of a healthy, diverse, and well-9 
managed urban forest.  More specifically, this article is intended to accomplish the 10 
following:    [Note: Correction for deleted Comp Plan policies.]        11 

(1) Improve the appearance, character, and value of developed lands through 12 
landscaping that enhances, shades, screens, and buffers the built elements and 13 
that appropriately includes and preserves existing trees. 14 

(2) Require that the type, quality, and installation of trees and other vegetation 15 
planted to fulfill county landscaping and mitigation requirements be appropriate 16 
for successful establishment and long-term viability. prevent the unnatural 17 
decline of trees by requiring effective measures to protect them from damaging 18 
acts or practices, especially during site development, and establishing penalties 19 
to discourage violations.  [Note: Correction of partial deletion and 20 
combination with separate intent.] 21 

(3) Prevent the unnatural decline of trees by requiring effective measures to protect 22 
them from damaging acts or practices, especially during site development, and 23 
requiring mitigation to discourage and remedy violations of those measures. 24 

(3)(4) Allow and encourage the appropriate removal of trees through an objective 25 
criterion-based review but, prohibit the inappropriate removal of trees, and 26 
require mitigation by replacement trees to compensate for the lost benefits of 27 
removed healthy trees by requiring sufficient replacement planting of quality 28 
trees. 29 

(4)(5) Emphasize the use of native species for reduced irrigation needs and 30 
improved plant establishment, survival, and vitality. 31 

(5)(6) Increase the diversity of age and species among trees for long-term urban 32 
forest health and stability, and increase the proportion of wind-resistant trees to 33 
make future storms less devastating. 34 

Sec. 5-7.2 General provisions. 35 

(a) Approval required.  All land uses and development activities require prior county 36 
review and approval for compliance with the standards of this article, unless the use 37 
or activity is specifically identified in the LDC as exempt from these standards.  38 
These standards are in addition to any required vegetative control of erosion and 39 
sediment from land disturbance or any landscaping required by any other conditions 40 



 

PB 1-3-17 
Re: Landscaping and Tree Protection 
Draft PB 1 Page 2 

of county approval.  1 

(b) Exemptions.  The following uses are exempt from the general landscaping 2 
provisions of this article, but in no case do the exemptions apply to any required 3 
vegetative control of erosion and sediment, required tree replacement, or 4 
landscaping required by any special condition of county approval: [Note: 5 
Corrections to reestablish deleted distinction between exemptions from 6 
general landscaping and exemptions from tree protection and preservation.] 7 

(1) General landscaping.  The following uses and activities are exempt from the 8 
general landscaping provisions of this article: 9 

(1)a. Residential lots.  The improvements in a single-family residential 10 
subdivision and or on any lot of a single-family or two-family dwelling.  11 
Developers, of residential subdivisions, in coordination with homebuilders, 12 
and homeowners are nonetheless encouraged to provide shade trees within 13 
developed residential lots, along streets, and elsewhere within subdivisions 14 
consistent with the plant selection and installation standards of this article for 15 
the benefit of residents. Except as described in DSM Chapter 2, Section 2-16 
1(e) Protected Trees. 17 

(2)b. Agriculture and silviculture.  Bona fide agricultural or silvicultural 18 
operations on land classified by the Escambia County Property Appraiser as 19 
“agricultural” for ad valorem tax purposes. 20 

(3)c. State or federal conflicts.  Any use for which county landscaping 21 
requirements conflict with the requirements of state or federal authorizations, 22 
except that the exemption shall only be for those modifications of county 23 
requirements to the extent necessary to eliminate the conflict (e.g., 24 
substitution of plant forms and species). 25 

(4)d. Temporary uses.  Any temporary use as prescribed in Article 7 of Chapter 26 
4.  27 

(5)e. Playing fields.  Areas authorized through county approval for public or 28 
private parks, playgrounds, playing fields, or golf courses that will be retained 29 
in pervious ground cover.  The sites of parking lots, community centers, 30 
clubhouses and other structures or uses accessory to such parks, grounds, 31 
fields, or courses remain subject to applicable landscape requirements. 32 

(2) Tree protection and preservation.  Specific tree types, tree conditions, and site 33 
activities are exempt from the tree protection and preservation provisions of this 34 
article as prescribed in DSM Chapter 2. 35 

(c) Disclaimer.  Nothing in this article shall be understood to impose any liability for 36 
damages or a duty of care or maintenance upon the county or any of its officers or 37 
employees, nor to relieve the owner of any private property from the duty to keep 38 
any tree, shrub, or other plant on his property or under his control in such a condition 39 
as to prevent it from constituting a hazard or an impediment to travel or vision along 40 
any street or public place. 41 

(d) Nonconformance.  In addition to the nonconformance provisions of Chapter 1, if a 42 



 

PB 1-3-17 
Re: Landscaping and Tree Protection 
Draft PB 1 Page 3 

standard of this article provides no other guidance for the correction of 1 
nonconformance, the correction shall be made in general proportion to any proposed 2 
change that is subject to the standard, and to the extent that sufficient land is 3 
available, as determined by the approving authority. [Note: Correction to 4 
reestablish a minimum method for addressing nonconformance with 5 
standards.] 6 

(e) Variances.  Variances to the strict application of the standards of this article may be 7 
granted according to the variance criteria and review processes prescribed in Article 8 
6 of Chapter 2, provided such modifications maintain the stated purposes of this 9 
article and are not excluded by other provisions of the LDC.  Any variance of the 10 
landscaping standards shall be guided by applicable professional landscaping 11 
standards and any variance of the tree protection and preservation standards shall 12 
be guided by applicable professional arboricultural standards. [Correction to 13 
reestablish the availability of variances to article standards.] 14 

(f) Enforcement.  The standards of this article shall be enforced by county code 15 
enforcement officers as authorized pursuant to Chapter 30, Code Enforcement, Part 16 
I, Escambia County Code of Ordinances.  Any party or parties in violation of these 17 
standards are subject to notices of violation, citations, and civil penalties as 18 
prescribed in Chapter 30, and those other actions and costs prescribed in this 19 
article. 20 

(d)(g) Landscape plans.  Prior to any county authorization of land development 21 
requiring site landscaping, a landscape plan shall adequately document compliance 22 
with all applicable landscaping standards of this article and the DSM Chapter 2, 23 
Landscaping Article.  The plan shall include all calculations, dimensions, notes, and 24 
details necessary to describe the landscape elements and their relation to the site 25 
boundary and site improvements.  Any landscaping proposed solely at the owner’s 26 
discretion shall be distinguished from that required by the county.  Additionally, the 27 
plan shall include owner notification of the responsibility for the establishment of 28 
newly planted trees and shrubs and the continuing obligation of maintenance of all 29 
landscape elements.  30 

(e)(h) Landscape design.  Site landscape design shall evidence consideration of 31 
existing protected trees, site soils, including plants adaptable to site conditions, and 32 
practical use of turf grass.  Established trees and other areas of vegetation shall be 33 
incorporated where it is practical to lower the adverse impacts of development, 34 
including the need for irrigation.  If adequate on-site vegetation does not exist or 35 
cannot be preserved to meet minimum landscape requirements, plants shall be 36 
selected and installed according to the provisions of this article.  The assistance of a 37 
landscape professional in planning and design is encouraged. 38 

(f)(i) Tree types.  The DSM Chapter 2, Tree Removal and Replacement section 39 
establishes the standards for a tree determination, including the criteria for the 40 
understory, canopy, evergreen trees, and deciduous plants. Trees are defined in 41 
Chapter 6 and characterized for the purposes of this article as either canopy trees 42 
which typically mature at heights greater than 30 feet, or understory trees which 43 
typically mature at lesser heights.  Furthermore, trees (and shrubs) are either 44 



 

PB 1-3-17 
Re: Landscaping and Tree Protection 
Draft PB 1 Page 4 

classified as deciduous, which shed foliage at the end of each year’s growing 1 
season, or as evergreen which have persisting green foliage throughout the year.  2 
[Note: Correction to eliminate erroneous reference to DSM and reestablish 3 
terms used in landscape standards.] 4 

Sec. 5-7.3 Landscape areas and quantities.  See DSM Chapter 2, Landscape 5 
Areas and Quantities section for details regarding landscape areas and quantities.  6 

Sec. 5-7.4 Tree protection and preservation.   7 

(a) General.  Tree protection and preservation requires reasonable assurance through 8 
the application of professional arboriculture standards that a healthy tree will remain 9 
so.  Adverse changes in natural site conditions are often unavoidable, but the 10 
provisions of this section consolidate and simplify standards needed to achieve 11 
promote meaningful tree protection and preservation within the development.  The 12 
DSM Chapter 2, Tree Protection and Preservation section, establishes the 13 
provisions for the tree approval, prohibited acts, tree preservation, and tree 14 
protection areas those protected trees that require county authorization to remove or 15 
otherwise adversely impact, and the minimum standards to protect and preserve 16 
them.  All applicable tree protection and preservation standards shall be 17 
documented on county-approved development plans. [Note: Correction to 18 
referenced DSM content.] 19 

(b) Violations.  All applicable tree protection and preservation standards of this article 20 
shall be documented on county-approved development plans.  Failure to comply 21 
with such standards will subject the development to site inspection failures, code 22 
enforcement citations and penalties. All penalties resulting from the enforcement of 23 
the provisions of this article shall be deposited in the Tree Restoration Fund in the 24 
same manner and for the same purposes prescribed for unplanted mitigation.  25 

Regardless of the association with any proposed or approved development, 26 
complaints of violation of the standards of this article will be investigated by county 27 
Code Enforcement officials who have the authority and responsibility to enforce the 28 
provisions of the LDC through the issuance of written citations according to the 29 
provisions of Chapter 30, Code Enforcement, Part I, Escambia County Code of 30 
Ordinances.   31 

For any violations of applicable tree protection and preservation standards, the 32 
landowner of record, permittee, contractor, agent, or any other party may be 33 
individually or collectively subject to notices of violation, citations, civil penalties, and 34 
site inspection failures, and to the mitigation costs prescribed in this article.  35 
Recurring violations on the same property or by the same parties after notice or 36 
citation will subject those parties in violation to increased penalties and additional 37 
mitigation requirements as authorized. [Note: Mitigation appropriately separated 38 
from code enforcement penalties.  Notices and citations applicable to all 39 
responsible parties] 40 

(c) Mitigation.  Mitigation is required for violations of tree protection and preservation 41 
standards and shall be provided within 30 days from the date of the written notice or 42 



 

PB 1-3-17 
Re: Landscaping and Tree Protection 
Draft PB 1 Page 5 

citation for any such violations that are uncontested.  The provision of mitigation for 1 
any contested violations shall be as determined by the hearing authority.  Full 2 
payment of mitigation costs is required prior to the issuance of any after-the-fact 3 
permits to redress violations.  Mitigation payments are separate from any code 4 
enforcement penalties and shall be deposited in the Tree Restoration Fund in the 5 
same manner and for the same purposes prescribed for required replacement trees 6 
not provided on the removal site.  Mitigation shall be provided as prescribed for the 7 
following actions and conditions: [Note: Compliance time corresponds to max 8 
Code Enforcement time for corrective action after notice.] 9 

(1) Tree removal.  The penalty for the unauthorized removal of a protected tree, 10 
including its effective removal by irreparable injury causing an unnatural decline, 11 
shall be the cost necessary to replace the total tree trunk diameter (DBH) inches 12 
removed with the same total caliper inches of standard replacement trees 13 
according to the current adopted fee schedule.  Where the actual DBH of the 14 
removed tree cannot be directly measured, county officials may estimate the size 15 
from any tree remains, photographs, or other reliable evidence.  Additionally, if a 16 
standard arboricultural assessment of the pre-removal tree conditions warrants, 17 
county officials may reduce the penalty accordingly but to no less than the fee 18 
schedule cost of one standard replacement tree.  19 

Removal and irreparable injury.  Mitigation for unauthorized removal of a 20 
protected tree, including its effective removal by irreparable injury causing an 21 
unnatural decline, is determined by the occurrence and extent of impact.  For 22 
these purposes, irreparable injury causing unnatural decline may include canopy 23 
damage from excessive or improper limb removal, or damage within the 24 
minimum required root zone from improper grubbing, grade change, excavation, 25 
compaction, contamination, or other adverse changes. 26 

a. Frequency of offense.  For the first offense, mitigation shall be the cost to 27 
replace 75 percent of the total tree trunk diameter (DBH) inches removed with 28 
the same total caliper inches of standard replacement trees according to the 29 
current adopted fee schedule.  For any subsequent offenses on the same 30 
property or by the same party on other property after notice or citation of the 31 
first offense, the mitigation shall be the cost to replace the total tree trunk 32 
diameter inches removed with the same total caliper inches of standard 33 
replacement trees. 34 

b. Determination of mitigation.  Where the actual DBH of a removed tree 35 
cannot be directly measured, county officials may estimate the size from any 36 
tree remains, photographs, or other reliable evidence.  Additionally, if a 37 
standard arboricultural (e.g., International Society of Arboriculture, or ISA) 38 
assessment of the pre-removal tree conditions warrants, the county arborist 39 
may reduce the mitigation of the first offense accordingly, but to no less than 40 
the fee schedule cost of one standard replacement tree. 41 

[Note: All removal and irreparable damage conditions combined.] 42 



 

PB 1-3-17 
Re: Landscaping and Tree Protection 
Draft PB 1 Page 6 

(2) Tree damage.  If a protected tree has sustained irreparable damage to its normal 1 
growth character by topping, “hat racking,” or other pruning exceeding 30% of 2 
total canopy, the fine may be based on the total caliper inches of limbs removed, 3 
up to the trunk diameter (DBH) and full tree replacement may be required.  If a 4 
standard arboricultural assessment of the pre-damage tree conditions warrants, 5 
county officials may reduce the penalty accordingly.  6 

Reparable injury.  Mitigation for reparable or reversible injury to a protected tree 7 
(i.e., injury not requiring replacement trees) shall be the practical and effective 8 
remediation of the injury as directed by an ISA certified arborist, but not required 9 
to exceed the cost of mitigation for unauthorized removal of the same tree.  The 10 
rehabilitation of an injured tree may require such actions as professional limb or 11 
root pruning, removal of root zone fill or impervious cover, mulching or other root 12 
zone treatment, installation of protective barriers, or a period of regular irrigation. 13 
[Note: Provisions added to mitigate non-removal, non-irreparable injury 14 
without replacement.  All irreparable damage combined with removal.] 15 

(3) ProtectionDeficient barriers.  The penaltyMitigation for failure to install or 16 
maintain one or more required tree protection barriers required by county 17 
development approval shall be correction of the failure and the cost of one 18 
standard replacement tree according to the current adopted fee schedule.  19 
Subsequent citations on the same site for failure to install or maintain the 20 
required barriers shall be correction of the failure and the cost of a standard 21 
replacement tree for each uninstalled or unmaintained barrier.  22 

Sec. 5-7.5 Tree inventory and assessment. The DSM Chapter 2, Tree Inventory 23 
and assessment section contains provisions for any land use or development activity 24 
application required to inventory on-site protected trees.  If no protected trees exist on 25 
the site, that condition shall be identified in the application documents. 26 

Sec. 5-7.6 Tree removal and replacement. 27 

General.  Existing healthy trees shall be preserved to the greatest extent practical to 28 
sustain an age-diverse urban forest and to minimize tree canopy cover losses.   29 
Removal of protected trees shall be avoided when possible and shall be minimized and 30 
mitigated when unavoidable.  The provisions criteria for the removal criteria and 31 
requirements for replacement are provided in the DSM Chapter 2, Tree Removal and 32 
Replacement- Removal Criteria section. 33 

Sec. 5-7.7 Plant selection, installation, and irrigation. 34 

(a) Appropriate selection of landscaping plants is essential for long-term survival and 35 
allows their buffering, aesthetic, erosion control, mitigation, and other benefits to be 36 
realized as early as practical.  Planting a variety of trees and shrubs helps maintain 37 
a diverse urban forest.  The DSM Chapter 2, Plant Selection, Installation, and 38 
Irrigation section containing provisions in the selection criteria includes requirements 39 
for the provisions of quality, and species, of trees, and other landscape vegetation.  40 



 

PB 1-3-17 
Re: Landscaping and Tree Protection 
Draft PB 1 Page 7 

Irrigation systems are encouraged, as they are reliable components of plant 1 
maintenance, especially during critical periods of plant establishment after planting. 2 

 3 

Sec. 6-0.3 Terms defined. 4 

Tree, canopy.  A tree of a species that typically grows to a mature height greater than 5 
30 feet.  Trees of such greater height and more substantial cover may also be known as 6 
shade trees. 7 

Tree, understory.  A tree of a species that typically grows to a mature height no greater 8 
than 30 feet.  Trees of such limited size and more decorative use may also be known as 9 
ornamental or accent trees. 10 

 11 





 

PB 1-3-17 
Re: Landscaping and Tree Protection 
Draft PB 1 Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2017-_______ 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 3 
PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 4 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 5 
AMENDED; AMENDING CHAPTER 5, GENERAL DEVELOPMENT 6 
STANDARDS, ARTICLE 7, LANDSCAPING, TO CLARIFY  7 
PROVISIONS FOR TREE PROTECTION, IMPROVE COORDINATION 8 
WITH REFERENCED MANUALS, ESTABLISH NONCONFORMANCE, 9 
VARIANCE, AND ENFORCEMENT PROVISIONS FOR ARTICLE 10 
STANDARDS, AND MODIFY RESPONSIBILITIES AND REQUIRED 11 
MITIGATION FOR VIOLATIONS OF TREE PROTECTION STANDARDS; 12 
AMENDING CHAPTER 6, DEFINITIONS, TO DEFINE “CANOPY TREE” 13 
AND “UNDERSTORY TREE”; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 14 
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR 15 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 16 

  17 
 WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Florida has, in Chapter 125, Florida 18 
Statutes, conferred upon local governments the authority to adopt regulations designed 19 
to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry; and   20 

 WHEREAS, through its Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, the 21 
Escambia County Board of County Commissioners has recognized the environmental 22 
and community benefits of a healthy, diverse, and well-managed urban forest; and, 23 

 WHEREAS, the Board finds that clear and direct descriptions of minimum 24 
landscaping and tree protection requirements consistent with the established purposes 25 
for those requirements are essential to realize the intended public benefits; and, 26 

 WHEREAS, the Board further finds that, since the April 16, 2015, adoption of the 27 
Land Development Code, amendments to better implement its landscaping and tree 28 
protection provisions are necessary and beneficial; 29 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 30 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 31 
 32 
Section 1.  Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 33 
Code of Escambia County, Chapter 5, General Development Standards, Article 7, 34 
Landscaping, is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words 35 
stricken are deletions): 36 

 37 

Article 7 Landscaping and Tree Protection 38 

Sec. 5-7.1 Purpose of article.   39 

This article establishes land development standards for landscaping and tree protection 40 
that implement Comprehensive Plan policies requiring the promotion, protection, and 41 



 

PB 1-3-17 
Re: Landscaping and Tree Protection 
Draft PB 1 Page 2 

preservation of trees and other vegetation development to apply professional practices 1 
for landscaping and tree protection.  It is the intent of these standards to promote 2 
support the environmental and community benefits of a healthy, diverse, and well-3 
managed urban forest.  More specifically, this article is intended to accomplish the 4 
following:            5 

(1) Improve the appearance, character, and value of developed lands through 6 
landscaping that enhances, shades, screens, and buffers the built elements and 7 
that appropriately includes and preserves existing trees. 8 

(2) Require that the type, quality, and installation of trees and other vegetation 9 
planted to fulfill county landscaping and mitigation requirements be appropriate 10 
for successful establishment and long-term viability. prevent the unnatural 11 
decline of trees by requiring effective measures to protect them from damaging 12 
acts or practices, especially during site development, and establishing penalties 13 
to discourage violations. 14 

(3) Prevent the unnatural decline of trees by requiring effective measures to protect 15 
them from damaging acts or practices, especially during site development, and 16 
requiring mitigation to discourage and remedy violations of those measures. 17 

(3)(4) Allow and encourage the appropriate removal of trees through an objective 18 
criterion-based review but, prohibit the inappropriate removal of trees, and 19 
require mitigation by replacement trees to compensate for the lost benefits of 20 
removed healthy trees by requiring sufficient replacement planting of quality 21 
trees. 22 

(4)(5) Emphasize the use of native species for reduced irrigation needs and 23 
improved plant establishment, survival, and vitality. 24 

(5)(6) Increase the diversity of age and species among trees for long-term urban 25 
forest health and stability, and increase the proportion of wind-resistant trees to 26 
make future storms less devastating. 27 

Sec. 5-7.2 General provisions. 28 

(a) Approval required.  All land uses and development activities require prior county 29 
review and approval for compliance with the standards of this article, unless the use 30 
or activity is specifically identified in the LDC as exempt from these standards.  31 
These standards are in addition to any required vegetative control of erosion and 32 
sediment from land disturbance or any landscaping required by any other conditions 33 
of county approval.  34 

(b) Exemptions.  The following uses are exempt from the general landscaping 35 
provisions of this article, but in no case do the exemptions apply to any required 36 
vegetative control of erosion and sediment, required tree replacement, or 37 
landscaping required by any special condition of county approval: 38 

(1) General landscaping.  The following uses and activities are exempt from the 39 
general landscaping provisions of this article: 40 

(1)a. Residential lots.  The improvements in a single-family residential 41 



 

PB 1-3-17 
Re: Landscaping and Tree Protection 
Draft PB 1 Page 3 

subdivision and or on any lot of a single-family or two-family dwelling.  1 
Developers, of residential subdivisions, in coordination with homebuilders, 2 
and homeowners are nonetheless encouraged to provide shade trees within 3 
developed residential lots, along streets, and elsewhere within subdivisions 4 
consistent with the plant selection and installation standards of this article for 5 
the benefit of residents. Except as described in DSM Chapter 2, Section 2-6 
1(e) Protected Trees. 7 

(2)b. Agriculture and silviculture.  Bona fide agricultural or silvicultural 8 
operations on land classified by the Escambia County Property Appraiser as 9 
“agricultural” for ad valorem tax purposes. 10 

(3)c. State or federal conflicts.  Any use for which county landscaping 11 
requirements conflict with the requirements of state or federal authorizations, 12 
except that the exemption shall only be for those modifications of county 13 
requirements to the extent necessary to eliminate the conflict (e.g., 14 
substitution of plant forms and species). 15 

(4)d. Temporary uses.  Any temporary use as prescribed in Article 7 of Chapter 16 
4.  17 

(5)e. Playing fields.  Areas authorized through county approval for public or 18 
private parks, playgrounds, playing fields, or golf courses that will be retained 19 
in pervious ground cover.  The sites of parking lots, community centers, 20 
clubhouses and other structures or uses accessory to such parks, grounds, 21 
fields, or courses remain subject to applicable landscape requirements. 22 

(2) Tree protection and preservation.  Specific tree types, tree conditions, and site 23 
activities are exempt from the tree protection and preservation provisions of this 24 
article as prescribed in DSM Chapter 2. 25 

(c) Disclaimer.  Nothing in this article shall be understood to impose any liability for 26 
damages or a duty of care or maintenance upon the county or any of its officers or 27 
employees, nor to relieve the owner of any private property from the duty to keep 28 
any tree, shrub, or other plant on his property or under his control in such a condition 29 
as to prevent it from constituting a hazard or an impediment to travel or vision along 30 
any street or public place. 31 

(d) Nonconformance.  In addition to the nonconformance provisions of Chapter 1, if a 32 
standard of this article provides no other guidance for the correction of 33 
nonconformance, the correction shall be made in general proportion to any proposed 34 
change that is subject to the standard, and to the extent that sufficient land is 35 
available, as determined by the approving authority.  36 

(e) Variances.  Variances to the strict application of the standards of this article may be 37 
granted according to the variance criteria and review processes prescribed in Article 38 
6 of Chapter 2, provided such modifications maintain the stated purposes of this 39 
article and are not excluded by other provisions of the LDC.  Any variance of the 40 
landscaping standards shall be guided by applicable professional landscaping 41 
standards and any variance of the tree protection and preservation standards shall 42 



 

PB 1-3-17 
Re: Landscaping and Tree Protection 
Draft PB 1 Page 4 

be guided by applicable professional arboricultural standards.  1 

(f) Enforcement.  The standards of this article shall be enforced by county code 2 
enforcement officers as authorized pursuant to Chapter 30, Code Enforcement, Part 3 
I, Escambia County Code of Ordinances.  Any party or parties in violation of these 4 
standards are subject to notices of violation, citations, and civil penalties as 5 
prescribed in Chapter 30, and those other actions and costs prescribed in this 6 
article. 7 

(d)(g) Landscape plans.  Prior to any county authorization of land development 8 
requiring site landscaping, a landscape plan shall adequately document compliance 9 
with all applicable landscaping standards of this article and the DSM Chapter 2, 10 
Landscaping Article.  The plan shall include all calculations, dimensions, notes, and 11 
details necessary to describe the landscape elements and their relation to the site 12 
boundary and site improvements.  Any landscaping proposed solely at the owner’s 13 
discretion shall be distinguished from that required by the county.  Additionally, the 14 
plan shall include owner notification of the responsibility for the establishment of 15 
newly planted trees and shrubs and the continuing obligation of maintenance of all 16 
landscape elements.  17 

(e)(h) Landscape design.  Site landscape design shall evidence consideration of 18 
existing protected trees, site soils, including plants adaptable to site conditions, and 19 
practical use of turf grass.  Established trees and other areas of vegetation shall be 20 
incorporated where it is practical to lower the adverse impacts of development, 21 
including the need for irrigation.  If adequate on-site vegetation does not exist or 22 
cannot be preserved to meet minimum landscape requirements, plants shall be 23 
selected and installed according to the provisions of this article.  The assistance of a 24 
landscape professional in planning and design is encouraged. 25 

(f)(i) Tree types.  The DSM Chapter 2, Tree Removal and Replacement section 26 
establishes the standards for a tree determination, including the criteria for the 27 
understory, canopy, evergreen trees, and deciduous plants. Trees are defined in 28 
Chapter 6 and characterized for the purposes of this article as either canopy trees 29 
which typically mature at heights greater than 30 feet, or understory trees which 30 
typically mature at lesser heights.  Furthermore, trees (and shrubs) are either 31 
classified as deciduous, which shed foliage at the end of each year’s growing 32 
season, or as evergreen which have persisting green foliage throughout the year.   33 

Sec. 5-7.3 Landscape areas and quantities.  See DSM Chapter 2, Landscape 34 
Areas and Quantities section for details regarding landscape areas and quantities.  35 

Sec. 5-7.4 Tree protection and preservation.   36 

(a) General.  Tree protection and preservation requires reasonable assurance through 37 
the application of professional arboriculture standards that a healthy tree will remain 38 
so.  Adverse changes in natural site conditions are often unavoidable, but the 39 
provisions of this section consolidate and simplify standards needed to achieve 40 
promote meaningful tree protection and preservation within the development.  The 41 
DSM Chapter 2, Tree Protection and Preservation section, establishes the 42 



 

PB 1-3-17 
Re: Landscaping and Tree Protection 
Draft PB 1 Page 5 

provisions for the tree approval, prohibited acts, tree preservation, and tree 1 
protection areas those protected trees that require county authorization to remove or 2 
otherwise adversely impact, and the minimum standards to protect and preserve 3 
them.  All applicable tree protection and preservation standards shall be 4 
documented on county-approved development plans.  5 

(b) Violations.  All applicable tree protection and preservation standards of this article 6 
shall be documented on county-approved development plans.  Failure to comply 7 
with such standards will subject the development to site inspection failures, code 8 
enforcement citations and penalties. All penalties resulting from the enforcement of 9 
the provisions of this article shall be deposited in the Tree Restoration Fund in the 10 
same manner and for the same purposes prescribed for unplanted mitigation.  11 

Regardless of the association with any proposed or approved development, 12 
complaints of violation of the standards of this article will be investigated by county 13 
Code Enforcement officials who have the authority and responsibility to enforce the 14 
provisions of the LDC through the issuance of written citations according to the 15 
provisions of Chapter 30, Code Enforcement, Part I, Escambia County Code of 16 
Ordinances.   17 

For any violations of applicable tree protection and preservation standards, the 18 
landowner of record, permittee, contractor, agent, or any other party may be 19 
individually or collectively subject to notices of violation, citations, civil penalties, and 20 
site inspection failures, and to the mitigation costs prescribed in this article.  21 
Recurring violations on the same property or by the same parties after notice or 22 
citation will subject those parties in violation to increased penalties and additional 23 
mitigation requirements as authorized.  24 

(c) Mitigation.  Mitigation is required for violations of tree protection and preservation 25 
standards and shall be provided within 30 days from the date of the written notice or 26 
citation for any such violations that are uncontested.  The provision of mitigation for 27 
any contested violations shall be as determined by the hearing authority.  Full 28 
payment of mitigation costs is required prior to the issuance of any after-the-fact 29 
permits to redress violations.  Mitigation payments are separate from any code 30 
enforcement penalties and shall be deposited in the Tree Restoration Fund in the 31 
same manner and for the same purposes prescribed for required replacement trees 32 
not provided on the removal site.  Mitigation shall be provided as prescribed for the 33 
following actions and conditions:  34 

(1) Tree removal.  The penalty for the unauthorized removal of a protected tree, 35 
including its effective removal by irreparable injury causing an unnatural decline, 36 
shall be the cost necessary to replace the total tree trunk diameter (DBH) inches 37 
removed with the same total caliper inches of standard replacement trees 38 
according to the current adopted fee schedule.  Where the actual DBH of the 39 
removed tree cannot be directly measured, county officials may estimate the size 40 
from any tree remains, photographs, or other reliable evidence.  Additionally, if a 41 
standard arboricultural assessment of the pre-removal tree conditions warrants, 42 
county officials may reduce the penalty accordingly but to no less than the fee 43 
schedule cost of one standard replacement tree.  44 



 

PB 1-3-17 
Re: Landscaping and Tree Protection 
Draft PB 1 Page 6 

Removal and irreparable injury.  Mitigation for unauthorized removal of a 1 
protected tree, including its effective removal by irreparable injury causing an 2 
unnatural decline, is determined by the occurrence and extent of impact.  For 3 
these purposes, irreparable injury causing unnatural decline may include canopy 4 
damage from excessive or improper limb removal, or damage within the 5 
minimum required root zone from improper grubbing, grade change, excavation, 6 
compaction, contamination, or other adverse changes. 7 

a. Frequency of offense.  For the first offense, mitigation shall be the cost to 8 
replace 75 percent of the total tree trunk diameter (DBH) inches removed with 9 
the same total caliper inches of standard replacement trees according to the 10 
current adopted fee schedule.  For any subsequent offenses on the same 11 
property or by the same party on other property after notice or citation of the 12 
first offense, the mitigation shall be the cost to replace the total tree trunk 13 
diameter inches removed with the same total caliper inches of standard 14 
replacement trees. 15 

b. Determination of mitigation.  Where the actual DBH of a removed tree 16 
cannot be directly measured, county officials may estimate the size from any 17 
tree remains, photographs, or other reliable evidence.  Additionally, if a 18 
standard arboricultural (e.g., International Society of Arboriculture, or ISA) 19 
assessment of the pre-removal tree conditions warrants, the county arborist 20 
may reduce the mitigation of the first offense accordingly, but to no less than 21 
the fee schedule cost of one standard replacement tree. 22 

(2) Tree damage.  If a protected tree has sustained irreparable damage to its normal 23 
growth character by topping, “hat racking,” or other pruning exceeding 30% of 24 
total canopy, the fine may be based on the total caliper inches of limbs removed, 25 
up to the trunk diameter (DBH) and full tree replacement may be required.  If a 26 
standard arboricultural assessment of the pre-damage tree conditions warrants, 27 
county officials may reduce the penalty accordingly.  28 

Reparable injury.  Mitigation for reparable or reversible injury to a protected tree 29 
(i.e., injury not requiring replacement trees) shall be the practical and effective 30 
remediation of the injury as directed by an ISA certified arborist, but not required 31 
to exceed the cost of mitigation for unauthorized removal of the same tree.  The 32 
rehabilitation of an injured tree may require such actions as professional limb or 33 
root pruning, removal of root zone fill or impervious cover, mulching or other root 34 
zone treatment, installation of protective barriers, or a period of regular irrigation.  35 

(3) ProtectionDeficient barriers.  The penaltyMitigation for failure to install or 36 
maintain one or more required tree protection barriers required by county 37 
development approval shall be correction of the failure and the cost of one 38 
standard replacement tree according to the current adopted fee schedule.  39 
Subsequent citations on the same site for failure to install or maintain the 40 
required barriers shall be correction of the failure and the cost of a standard 41 
replacement tree for each uninstalled or unmaintained barrier.  42 



 

PB 1-3-17 
Re: Landscaping and Tree Protection 
Draft PB 1 Page 7 

Sec. 5-7.5 Tree inventory and assessment. The DSM Chapter 2, Tree Inventory 1 
and assessment section contains provisions for any land use or development activity 2 
application required to inventory on-site protected trees.  If no protected trees exist on 3 
the site, that condition shall be identified in the application documents. 4 

Sec. 5-7.6 Tree removal and replacement. 5 

General.  Existing healthy trees shall be preserved to the greatest extent practical to 6 
sustain an age-diverse urban forest and to minimize tree canopy cover losses.   7 
Removal of protected trees shall be avoided when possible and shall be minimized and 8 
mitigated when unavoidable.  The provisions criteria for the removal criteria and 9 
requirements for replacement are provided in the DSM Chapter 2, Tree Removal and 10 
Replacement- Removal Criteria section. 11 

Sec. 5-7.7 Plant selection, installation, and irrigation. 12 

(a) Appropriate selection of landscaping plants is essential for long-term survival and 13 
allows their buffering, aesthetic, erosion control, mitigation, and other benefits to be 14 
realized as early as practical.  Planting a variety of trees and shrubs helps maintain 15 
a diverse urban forest.  The DSM Chapter 2, Plant Selection, Installation, and 16 
Irrigation section containing provisions in the selection criteria includes requirements 17 
for the provisions of quality, and species, of trees, and other landscape vegetation.  18 

Irrigation systems are encouraged, as they are reliable components of plant 19 
maintenance, especially during critical periods of plant establishment after planting. 20 

 21 

Section 2. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land 22 
Development Code of Escambia County, Chapter 6, Definitions, is hereby amended as 23 
follows (words underlined are additions and words stricken are deletions): 24 

Sec. 6-0.3 Terms defined. 25 

Tree, canopy.  A tree of a species that typically grows to a mature height greater than 26 
30 feet.  Trees of such greater height and more substantial cover may also be known as 27 
shade trees. 28 

Tree, understory.  A tree of a species that typically grows to a mature height no greater 29 
than 30 feet.  Trees of such limited size and more decorative use may also be known as 30 
ornamental or accent trees. 31 

 32 
Section 3. Severability. 33 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 34 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 35 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 36 
 37 
Section 4. Inclusion in Code. It is the intention of the Board of County 38 
Commissioners that the provisions of this Ordinance shall be codified as required by 39 



 

PB 1-3-17 
Re: Landscaping and Tree Protection 
Draft PB 1 Page 8 

F.S. § 125.68 (2016); and that the sections, subsections and other provisions of this 1 
Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered and the word “ordinance” may be changed 2 
to “section,” “chapter,” or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish 3 
such intentions. 4 
 5 

Section 5. Effective Date.  6 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 7 
 8 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2017. 9 
 10 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 11 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 12 

  13 
By: ______________________________ 14 

           D. B. Underhill, Chairman 15 
 16 

ATTEST:    PAM CHILDERS                                             17 
    Clerk of the Circuit Court 18 

 19 
  By: __________________________    20 
          Deputy Clerk  21 
(SEAL) 22 

 23 

ENACTED: 24 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:    25 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  26 

 27 



   
Planning Board-Regular   7. B.           
Meeting Date: 01/03/2017  

Agenda Item:
2017 Planning Board Meeting Calendar

Attachments
Draft 2017 PB Meeting Calendar



 
 Development Services Department   
 Escambia County, Florida                          

 

2017 MEETING SCHEDULE 

** All applications MUST be received before 3:00 p.m. ** 
 
 

PLANNING BOARD/REZONING  
 

Meeting Date Jan 3 Feb 7 Mar 7 April 4 May 2 June 6 July 5 Aug 1 Sept 5 Oct 2 Nov 7 Dec 5 

Deadline Nov 17, 2016 Dec 22, 2016 Jan 19 Feb 16 Mar 16 April 20 May 19 June 15 July 20 Aug 16 Sept 21 Oct 19 

 
Unless otherwise changed (due to holidays or special needs), the Planning Board (PB) meets the 1st Tuesday of each month 

at 8:30 a.m. at the Escambia County Central Office Complex, 3363 West Park Place Pensacola, Florida 
 


	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Att1_December 6, 2016 Draft Regular Planning Board Minutes
	Att2_Monthly Action Follow-Up
	Att3_Six Month Outlook
	PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE
	SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR JANUARY 2017

	A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the 2030 Future Land Use Map, LSA-2016-04
	Att1_LSA-2016-04 Working Case File
	LSA-2016-04
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	Current FLU Map
	Proposed FLU Map
	ELU Map
	CRA Map
	Photos
	Application
	Boundary Surveys
	TTO Comments

	Att2_Staff Analysis
	Att3_Draft Ordinance
	A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending LDC Chapters 5 and 6
	Att1_Background
	Att2_Draft Ordinance
	2017 Planning Board Meeting Calendar
	Att1_Draft 2017 PB Meeting Calendar

